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STEPHEN F. AUSTIN STATE UNIVERSITY 
Request for Proposal # 

SOUND RECORDING TECH STUDIO-23 
 

PROPOSAL MUST BE RECEIVED BEFORE: 
*5:00PM, WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 16, 2022 

 
ADDENDUM NO. 5  

 
THIS ADDENDUM DOES NOT HAVE TO BE ACKNOWLEDGED FOR THE 

RESPONSE TO RECEIVE CONSIDERATION. 
 

Updates in Red 
 
SECTION 2-STATEMENT OF WORK 
 
2.5 RECEPTION 150 
 
 SFA will furnish a small desk, office chair, and small storage cabinet. 
 
2.11 MISCELLANEOUS-Deleted 
 
2.11.1 Facility Wide Allowances-Deleted 
   
2.11.2 Services-Deleted 
 
2.14 OTHER GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
2.14.2  Deleted 
 
2.14.4 
 
Please refer to RFP sections 1.1, 2.1, 2.2.1, 2.3.1 Addendum (ADD) No. 2, 2.10.2 ADD 
No. 2, 2.14, and 3.6 ADD 5 which address the intended nature of the request for 
proposal and refers to a general needs overview and acknowledgement of necessary 
coordination for detailed design.  
 
In no way are the specifications included in this RFP the only make, model and/or 
manufacturer that can be considered. We have included specs as example of desired 
quality only and to provide baseline guidelines. We encourage you to respond to your 
line of equivalent offerings. 
 
In summary, the university is seeking proposals from qualified vendors who can provide 
a turn-key sound recording technology studio – to include equipment and installation 
(RFP sections 1.1 & 2.1), not a ready-to-purchase equipment list.  
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An all-inclusive equipment package is not expected until after award, after which 
detailed conversations with vendors, installers, educators, musicians, contractors, and 
designers will occur (RFP sections 2.2.1 & 2.10.2 ADD2).  Estimated base equipment 
and software budget allowances have been provided in the Exhibit C -Revised Financial 
Proposal Worksheet to communicate the general budgetary commitment to the project 
and remove the variable of “detailed design” from the overall proposal response.  
 
Respondents should use professional judgment, expertise, and proposed value adds in 
conjunction with the qualitative information provided by the university to prepare 
responses to Exhibit E and the remaining unit costs in the Exhibit C -Revised Financial 
Proposal Worksheet. Take special care to review evaluation criteria listed in 3.6.3, 
which is structured for a comprehensive review and analysis of proposal responses 
based on best value (RFP section 3.6).  
 
SECTION 3 
3.6.3 Evaluation Criteria 
 

a. 25% -  Respondent’s qualifications and experience on relevant projects, 
identification of key project team members, including references; 

 
b. 30% - Quality of equipment offered; additional explanation or details to 

support cost  proposal, where needed, including full spec sheets;   
 
d. 20% -   Warranties long term customer service and maintenance plan, and 

include standard training and demonstration processes; 
 
e. 25% - Reasonableness of Financial Proposal for Estimated Cost of Work; 

completed financial proposal in Exhibit C excel format utilizing template 
provided; 

 
EXHIBITS 
ADDENDUM No. 2-EXHIBIT A-Deleted including any references made to Exhibit A 
 in Addendum No. 2 
 
EXHIBIT C -REVISED FINANCIAL PROPOSAL-See Attached 
 
Please note the following responses to questions received:  
 

General Project Questions 
 

1.  Concerning section 1.5 of the RFP: Open Records:  Can we ask that our line-item 
pricing be redacted from public record and that our total bid price only be public 
record?  Or does every line-item price become public record? 
 
Answer:   A request to redact line-item pricing from public record can be noted in 
your proposal response but SFA must obtain approval for any redactions by the 
Texas attorney general office. SFA’s practice is to notify the vendor of any public 
information request which potentially contains proprietary information.  
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2. Will the entire RFP be awarded to one vendor, or does the University Reserve the 

right to give partial awards to multiple vendors? 
 
Answer: SFA plans to award to one vendor. 
 

3. Please advise on current state of construction within the facility as a whole. 
Including, and not limited to: 

a. -Structural 
b. -Electrical 
c. -Plumbing 
d. -Finish Work 
e. -IT 
f. -Permitting 
g. -Other, if applicable 

 
 Answer: Construction is ongoing, expected complete in March 2023. Detailed 
 coordination can be expected after award. 

 
4. Please provide point of contact (POC) information for any applicable parties 

involved in this project. Including and not limited to: 
Project manager (internal and/or external) 
Consultants (internal and/or external) 
Architectural firm 
Consulting (Internal and/or external) 
General build contractor 
Electrical Contractor 
Acoustician (if applicable) 
IT (internal and/or external) 
Other, if applicable 
 
*POC Names, emails, phone numbers would be useful if any question pertaining 
to said trade arise in the planning, design, implementation, and commissioning 
phases. 
 

 Answer: Detailed coordination can be expected after award. 
 

5.  How would you define the general vision for the spaces and their day-to-day usage as 
it applies to your curriculum? 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
6.  Please describe day-to-day usage of the spaces by staff, students and other (support, 
maintenance, etc.). 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5. 
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7.  What type or types of degrees, certifications, etc. will the spaces be used for regarding 
students? 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5. 
 
8. Are there any product specific certifications you would like to offer programs for? 
*I.E. Pro Tools 101, 102, etc.? 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5. 
 
9. In regard to IT, file exchange, sharing resources, etc. How do you envision students 
would transition data and projects from space to space? 
*Local, in the sense each student has a dedicated hard drive and/or a networked storage 
solution for sharing files from space to space?  
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
10. Will networking between the spaces (In regard to audio, data and other) be isolated 
from the rest of the school or connected via a managed wide area network (WAN)? 
*If so, conversations with your IT department will need to be had to ensure required 
functionality, while maintaining desired security measures and standards of the school. 
  

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
11. Being that Dante Networked audio has been mentioned as a desired implementation, 
are there any organizational IT restrictions that may pose challenges to interconnectivity 
between the spaces? 
 

Answer: None that have been determined at this time, pending coordination 
 after award, Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
12. Specifically, regarding the following integration elements, what level of commitment 
will other parties be involved and bound to within their said scope of work:  
 -Electrical (providing adequate power to required spaces) 
 -HVAC (providing adequate cooling and ventilation to required spaces) 

-Audio, Video, Data Interconnectivity (Data, analog audio, digital audio, networked 
audio, video, security, life safety, etc.) 
-Cable pathways (conduit, junction boxes, termination plates, etc.) 
-Acoustics (insulation and wall build-out, floating floors, surface treatment, 
measurements, etc.) 
-Furniture and Décor (finer elements within said spaces) 
-IT (interconnectivity, network access and resource sharing, configuration, security 
measures) 
-Lighting needs 
-Access (manual and/or keycard or other access management) 
-General system deployment (if applicable) 
-Training and/or system orientation 
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-Continued service (maintenance contract, support, updates, etc.) 
 
Answer: The University will ensure full coordination as needed for integrated 

 elements to the extent that is it reasonable and not otherwise state as a part of 
 this scope. Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 

 
13. Will staff be designated to perform common maintenance and troubleshooting tasks? 
*Mentioned because a majority of large-scale facilities have on-site technicians to support 
common tasks such as: 

-General troubleshooting, addressing connectivity and inoperability functions, 
routine software, firmware and/or hardware updates, upgrades, repair, etc. 
  
Answer: Minimally; Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 

14. In closing. Providing a comprehensive solution to our valued clients is our priority. 
Beyond the initial project. Our focus is the relationship and serving our clients with the 
right solution for their goals and vision over time. If you could describe in a short 
paragraph how we could best do so for you, that would be helpful to understanding the 
overall long-term vision, and how we can assist you in making this venture a reality. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 

Questions related to the specific spaces outlined in RFP 
 

Editing classroom 146 questions 
 
15.  How many systems total is intended to be in the Editing Classroom (146)?  
*List includes 12 iMac computers, 12 Scarlett 4i4’s. In addition, there are 5 HDX/Pro Tools 
Ultimate DSP+Interface requirements listed.  We would think that you would want all 12 
stations to be the same? 
 

Answer: The University holds some existing software licenses, however, Refer 
 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 

 
16.  2.3.1 notes “This room will service many classes that require professional surround 
sound for multimedia and recording arts instruction/demonstrations.” List below does not 
specify surround capable equipment nor desired format (5.1, 7.1, Atmos, Etc.) Please 
specify. 
 

Answer: Not in this scope, refer construction drawings linked in 2.15 
 
17.  Please specify which Version of NI Komplete 14 software is desired – standard, 
ultimate, or collector’s edition. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
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18.  Please specify which version of Ableton Live Software is desired – standard, or suite. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
19.  Please specify desired plugin needs and/or desired purpose to provide 
recommendations. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
20.  Please specify if acoustics requirements fall within scope and target STC rating. 
 
 Answer: Refer construction drawings linked in 2.15/ not in this scope. 

 
21.  Please specify furniture and seating needs if they fall within scope. 
 
 Answer: Not in this scope. 
 
22.  Please specify Dante Networked Audio interconnectivity needs between this and 
other spaces. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
23. Please clarify where the (3) S49 and (9) Impulse 25 keyboard controllers are going 
to be located within the room as well as any additional differences between the 
workstations. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
24. Please clarify the total number of workstations and the associated equipment and 
capabilities desired for each workstation. 
 

Answer:  Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
25. Please clarify the intent for power distribution between workstations. 
 
Is the intent that extension cords be used to run power from one workstation location with 
rack-mount, centralized power conditioners to other locations or is a commercial/industrial 
grade power conditioner to be provided to an electrician for installation on all circuits in 
us? 

 Answer: Refer to electrical drawings linked in 2.15. Expect detailed coordination 
 after award.  

 
26. Please clarify the quantity of Wave Gold bundles desired for this space. 
  

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
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27. Please clarify the quantity of Komplete Ultimate licenses desired for this space. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
28. Please clarify if the Pro Tools HDX system is not needed because it is already owned 
by the University but still needs to be integrated into the systems or if Pro Tools has been 
removed in its entirety from the scope for this space. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
29. Please clarify if the Dolby Atmos requirement for this space is simply to play back 
content or to be certified by Dolby. 
 

Answer: Not in this scope, refer construction drawings linked in 2.15 
 
30. Please clarify where source content for the Dolby Atmos system will be played back 
from. 
 

Answer: Not in this scope, refer construction drawings linked in 2.15 
 
31. Please clarify the make/model of desks and furniture that equipment will be integrated 
into, including the amount of available rack space. 
 
 Answer: Desks and furniture not in this scope. 

 
32. Please clarify if any connectivity is desired between the professor station and any 
student workstations. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
33. Please clarify if there will be an interaction between systems/equipment located at the 
professor station and the student workstations. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
34. The addenda referenced a 98” screen and a secondary 75” screen.  Please clarify 
what is intended to be shown on each of these screens. 
 

Answer: Not included in this scope 
 
35. It appears that each student workstation will simply have a keyboard controller 
associated with a local iMac and loaded with virtual instruments.  Please clarify if the only 
purpose of the audio interface is for use with owner-furnished headphones or if it is 
intended to have other analog inputs/outputs to/from the workstations. 
 

Answer: Monitoring headphones should be provided, also Refer 2.14.4 ADD 
 NO. 5 
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36.  Sheet AVS4.02 appears to indicate that there has been an AV presentation system 
designed for this space but specific makes/models are not called out.  Please clarify if this 
is in scope for this bid and if so: 
 
Please clarify if there is a bid specification that has been made available by the consultant. 
Please clarify the desired make/model equipment. 
Please clarify the intended operational resolution of the video and camera systems. 
Please clarify what controls are intended to be on the touch panel. 
Please clarify if this system is intended to be standalone or tied into other systems. 
 

Answer:  Details to be provided after award; Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
37. Please clarify if any accommodations need to be made for on-line or remote 
participants. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
38 Please clarify if any connectivity will be required between the Editing Classroom 146 
and other rooms. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 

ISO booth 147 questions 
 
39.  Should we assume that the computer in this space should have the same software 
stack as computers within other spaces? *No software listed. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
40.  Is the “X2P” listed intended as the primary audio interface for this space?  
*Please advise, no other audio interface noted in RFP. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
41. Please define connectivity needs between “Editing Classroom 146” and “ISO Booth 
147”. 
*I.E. Dante Networked or other, Analog, both? 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 

42.  Any additional need for video display beyond the built-in screen of the 24” iMac? 
 

Answer: None additional are provided by the design/construction team, also 
 Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
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43.  Please specify desired plugin needs and/or desired purpose to provide 
recommendations. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
44.  Please specify if acoustics requirements fall within scope and target STC rating. 
 
 Answer: Refer construction drawings linked in 2.15/ not in this scope. 

 
45.  Please specify furniture and seating needs if they fall within scope. 
 

Answer: Not in this scope. 
 
46.  Please specify Dante Networked Audio interconnectivity needs between this and 
other spaces. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
47. Please clarify if the recording station associated with Iso Boot 147 will be in room 
146 or a different space. 

Answer: Refer construction drawings linked in 2.15, ISO booth 147 is within 
 room 146.  
 
48. Please clarify what connectivity is desired for the Iso booth as well as where this 
connectivity should be fed to. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
49. Please clarify how musician/singer monitoring is intended to function within the Iso 
Booth. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
50. Please clarify how the talkback system is intended to function.  For example, is this 
intended to be a function utilized within a DAW located at the recording workstation or 
will this be a standalone system. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
51. For clarify if anything other than an iMac, studio monitors, single microphone, and 
small Focusrite interface is required for the recording station. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
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Office 149 questions 
 

52.  Please specify “post-production” intended purpose within this space.  
*Stereo editing, mixing and surround format capabilities. 
 
*Would recommend considering a full-range 3-way system for mastering capabilities. 
Ideally 2.1 with discrete sub and dedicated DAC/Monitoring solution. 
 
*Would recommend mastering specific and capable software such as Steinberg 
Wavelab Pro as well as mastering focused plugin and metering plugins, to suit intended 
purpose. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
53.  Please specify desired plugin needs and/or desired purpose to provide 
recommendations. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
54.  Please specify if acoustics requirements fall within scope and target STC rating. 
 

Answer: Refer construction drawings linked in 2.15/ not in this scope. 
 
55.  Please specify furniture and seating needs if they fall within scope. 
 

Answer: Not in this scope. 
 
56.  Please specify Dante Networked Audio interconnectivity needs between this and 
other spaces. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
57. Please clarify what panels have been suggested by the acoustician as well as if 
installation of acoustic panels is to be included within scope. 
 
 Answer: Refer construction drawings linked in 2.15 for acoustic considerations.  

 
58. Please clarify the desired specs for the Mac Studio 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 

59. Please clarify what outboard equipment is to be provided as part of this scope of work. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
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60. Please clarify what owner-furnished outboard equipment is to be integrated into the 
building/system as part of this scope. 
 

Answer:  Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
61. Please clarify if any equipment rack will be owner-furnished or is to be provided as 
part of this scope of work. 
 

Answer: Equipment rack will not be provided by the university.  
 
62. Please clarify if there will be any tie lines (digital or analog) or other connectivity 
between the Production Suite 149 and other spaces required. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
63. Please clarify if a surround sound system is to be included in the base system or if it 
is intended to be an add option as well as what type/size surround system is desired. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 

Office 152 questions 
 
64.  Please specify client furnished Atmos system equipment and format (7.1.4, 9.1.6, 
Etc.) 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
65.  Will the system utilize an external rendering machine equipped with Dolby Atmos 
Mastering Suite or internal rendering with Dolby Atmos Production Suite? 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
66.  Is a control surface desired? 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
67.  Will this space be used for Atmos Home Entertainment (HE) sound for film and TV, 
and/or Atmos Music content creation? 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
68.  Please provide insight on DSP platform to be utilized for room tuning. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
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69.  Please specify desired plugin needs and/or desired purpose to provide 
recommendations. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
70.  Please specify if acoustics requirements fall within scope and target STC rating.  
 

Answer: Refer construction drawings linked in 2.15/ not in this scope. 
 
71.  Please specify furniture and seating needs if they fall within scope. 
 
 Answer:  Not in this scope 

 
72.  Please specify Dante Networked Audio interconnectivity needs between this and 
other spaces. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
73. Please clarify what acoustic panels and equipment (whether owner or contractor 
furnished) need to be installed in this space. 
 
 Answer: Refer construction drawings linked in 2.15 for acoustic considerations.  

 
74. Please clarify if any tie lines (digital or analog) or other connectivity between the 
Production Suite 152 and other spaces are required. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
75. Please clarify if any equipment accessories (such as blank panels, power strip, etc.) 
will be required for this space. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 

Office 153 questions 
 
76.  Please specify scale, equipment needs and further define capabilities.  
*Current info only specifies “Red 8 Line Interface” 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
77.  Please specify desired primary computer form-factor?  
*I.E. Mac Pro, Mac Studio, Mac Mini, iMac (Desktop) or MacBook Pro, MacBook Air 
(Laptop). 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
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78.  Please specify desired video display needs. 
*Computer monitor, Wall mounted TV, Projector. Single or multiple. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
79.  Please specify desired plugin needs and/or desired purpose to provide 
recommendations. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
80.  Please specify if acoustics requirements fall within scope and target STC rating. 
 
 Answer: Refer construction drawings linked in 2.15/ not in this scope. 

 
81.  Please specify furniture and seating needs if they fall within scope. 
 
  Answer: Not in this scope 

 
82.  Please specify Dante Networked Audio interconnectivity needs between this and 
other spaces. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
83. Please clarify if any equipment other than Focusrite interface will be installed within 
this space as part of this scope. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
84. Please clarify if any tie lines (digital or analog) or other connectivity between the 
Production Suite 153 and other spaces are required. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
85. Please clarify what acoustic panels and equipment (whether owner or contractor 
furnished) need to be installed in this space 
 
 Answer:   Refer construction drawings linked in 2.15 for acoustic considerations.  

 
Studio A – main studio room 166 questions 

 
86.  Assuming “Studio A” refers to spaces “166/Main Studio and 165/Control Room”. 
Unless instructed otherwise. 
 

Answer: Studio A refers to spaces 165, 166, 166B, 166C, and 166D; Refer 
 construction drawings linked in 2.15 
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87. Please clarify the intent of how the visual feedback system will work and what will be 
shown. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
88. Please clarify exactly what equipment and accessories are desired, including 
quantities, as this will have a direct impact on the overall pricing of the system. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
89. Please clarify if wall cavities with size restrictions have been designed for the playback 
monitors adjacent to the control room window. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.1 “Vendor will be required to field verify…” 
 
90. Please clarify if there is a desired make/model for playback monitors. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
91. Please clarify what connectivity (with quantities) is desired between the studio and 
control booth. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 

Control room 165 questions 
 
92.  Is “Storage 164” possible to utilize for a machine room? Mac Pro tends to generate 
a good deal of normal self-noise and heat. 
*If not, please advise on if there will be a designated machine room (MR) for control room 
(CR) 165? 
 

Answer: Refer 2.10.4, Room 159 is dedicated for SRT equipment; pending final 
 coordination, Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
93.  Please specify desired secondary monitors or will advise on suitable options. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
94.  Please advise on total, maximum amount of simultaneous microphone inputs 
desired? 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
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95   Assuming outboard and console will be tied in via a patch bay system. Please 
advise on preferred form-factor. 
*Assuming 96-point TT. DB25 or Elco terminations?  
*Do you desire additional open banks on patch bay system for future expansion? 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
96.  Assuming that Studio A primary computer would be a Mac Pro Rackmount? 
*Please advise if otherwise. 
 

Answer: Yes, also Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
97.  Are TV and/or multiple computer monitors desired within this space? 
 

Answer: Not in this scope, Refer construction drawings linked in 2.15 
 
98.  No primary audio interface specified. Please advise on preference.  
*Could stay within the Focusrite Pro line or Avid MTRX or Other if Dante connectivity is 
desired. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
99.  No DSP specified. Please advise on desired Avid HDX configuration?  
*Would recommend at minimum HDX 2 based system to handle high track count and 
DSP resource needs. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
100.  No house clock or synchronization specified. 
*Would recommend options by Avid (Sync X) or Antelope (OCDX HD) or Brainstorm 
(DXD 16) 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
101.  Please specify if acoustics requirements fall within scope and target STC rating.  
 
 Answer: Refer construction drawings linked in 2.15/ not in this scope. 

 
 
102.  Please specify furniture and seating needs if they fall within scope. 
 
 Answer: Not in this scope. 
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103.  Please specify Dante Networked Audio interconnectivity needs between this and 
other spaces. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
104. Please clarify if the architect team has provided detailed drawings to the general 
contractor for how the Soffit mount should be constructed for the ATC sound system of if 
this is something within the scope of this contract. 
 
 Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 

 
 
105. Please clarify exactly what outboard processing is desired as this will directly 
correlate with the project budget. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
106. Please clarify if there is an owner-furnished equipment that will be integrated into 
this space. 
 

Answer: None is expected at this time, also Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
107. Please clarify if any DAW’s will be integrated into this space. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
108. Please clarify what spaces within the building will require analog and/or digital signal 
connectivity to this space as well as desired quantities. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
109. Please clarify if this room is to be part of a larger building-wide Dante or similar digital 
network. 
 

Answer: Assume building wide, also Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
110. Please clarify if locations and sizes have been determined for the large viewing 
screens as well as if these have been evaluated by the project acoustician. 
 

Answer: Locations and sizes have been determined and evaluated by the design 
 team; pending final coordination with awarded vendor (Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5) 
 
111. Please clarify the room number associated with the SRT Server Room 
 

Answer: Refer to section 2.14.1 of the RFP. 
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112. Please provide more details on the desired functionality for the video system 
described for rooms 166A, B, and C.  For example, will there be windowing on each 
display so that each room will see all rooms simultaneously or will views be selected by 
someone in the control room.  Additional details such as PTZ vs static camera’s, ability 
to record/stream video, as well as the desired video resolution would also be helpful in 
understanding the full scope of what is being desired. 
 

Answer:  Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 

166 D – ISO booth (drum) questions 
 
113.  -Please specify preference regarding drum mic kit/set. 
*I.E. Mic count, type, brand preference and the quantities. 
 

Answer: Refer to section 2.9.4 ADD No. 2 and 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
114.  Please specify cue routing capabilities. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
115.  Please specify if acoustics requirements fall within scope and target STC rating.  
 
 Answer:  Refer construction drawings linked in 2.15/ not in this scope. 

 
116.  Please specify Dante Networked Audio interconnectivity needs between this and 
other spaces. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
117.  Please clarify what connectivity (with quantities) is desired between the Iso Room 
and control booth. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 

166B – ISO booth (voice) questions 
 

118.  Please specify cue routing capabilities. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
119.  Please specify preferred vocal tracking microphone. 
*I.E. Sound signature (clear, warm, modern, vintage, etc.). Brand preference if any. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
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120.  Please specify if acoustics requirements fall within scope and target STC rating.  
 
 Answer: Refer construction drawings linked in 2.15/ not in this scope. 

  
121. Please clarify what is desired for an alternative ambient lighting system 
 

Answer: Not in this scope 
 
122. Please clarify where/how it is desired for the ambient lighting system to be controlled.  
 

Answer: Not in this scope 
 
123.  Please clarify what resolution/refresh rate the display is required to operate at. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
124.  Please clarify what connectivity (with quantities) is desired between the Iso Booth 
and control booth. 
 

Answer:  Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 

166C – ISO booth questions 
 

125.  Please specify general purpose for the space. 
 

Answer: To be determined, Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
126.  Please specify cue routing capabilities. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
127.  Please specify preferred general-purpose tracking microphone(s) 
*I.E. Sound signature (clear, warm, modern, vintage, etc.). Brand preference if any. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
128. Please specify if acoustics requirements fall within scope and target STC rating. 
 
 Answer: Refer construction drawings linked in 2.15/ not in this scope. 

 
129.  Please clarify what is desired for an alternative ambient lighting system. 
 

Answer: Not in this scope 
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130.  Please clarify where/how it is desired for the ambient lighting system to be 
controlled. 
 

Answer: Not in this scope 
 
131.  Please clarify what resolution/refresh rate the display is required to operate at. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
132.  Please clarify what connectivity (with quantities) is desired between the Iso Booth 
and control booth. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 

Studio B (control 163) questions 
 

133. Description refers to space as “modern studio designed for smaller recording 
demonstrations and advanced surround sound recording topics”. Please elaborate on 
capabilities noted below. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.10.2 ADD2 
 
134.  Please define “surround capabilities” 
 -Standard surround (5.1, 7.1 and/or Atmos 7.1.4, 9.1.6, etc.) 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
135.  No primary computer specified. Please elaborate on scale, capabilities, and form 
factor (Mac Pro, Mac Studio, Mac Mini, iMac, Etc.) 
 

Answer: Refer 2.10.2 ADD2 
 
136.  Please specify if acoustics requirements fall within scope and target STC rating.  
 
 Answer: Refer construction drawings linked in 2.15/ not in this scope. 

 
137. Please specify Dante Networked Audio interconnectivity needs between this and 
other spaces 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
138. Please clarify if the SSL 948 is already in Control Room 163 or if it will need to be 
located for a different location to room 163. 
 

Answer: It will need to be relocated.  
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139. Please clarify what connectivity, digital and/or analog is required to/from the control 
room from other spaces within the building. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 

Project studio 161 questions 
 

140. Little information provided on equipment requirements, purpose, or general use of 
this space. 
*Recommend considering this space as a “In the Box” (ITB) production space. Primarily 
focused around MIDI controllers, sound libraries, and supporting software. I.E. A pre-
production focused space. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
141. Please specify if acoustics requirements fall within scope and target STC rating. 
 

Answer: Refer construction drawings linked in 2.15/ not in this scope. 
 

AV network 159 overview questions 
 
142. Please verify adequate power access and ventilation within this space. 
 

Answer: Refer to construction drawings linked in 2.15. 
 
143.  Please clarify how many channels of Dante AD/DA conversion is desired. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
144. Please clarify if Dante is the only digital audio format that will be utilized or if other 
formats such as AES-67, Ravenna, AVB, etc.   
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
145. Please clarify if it is desired for the systems to operate at multiple sample rates and 
bit depths depending on the session (or class) or if everything will be set at a standard 
value with conversion for any devices that will not operate at the stated standard. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
146. Please clarify what locations will receive Dante network drops as well as the desired 
quantities. 
  

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
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147.  Please clarify if the University IT department will responsible for the deployment and 
maintenance associated with the Dante network or if it will be standalone and live outside 
of the University IT departments responsibilities. 
 

Answer:  Outside of the university IT department. 
 
148.  Please clarify if this closet will be used only for digital audio system patching or if 
analog patching between rooms will also be located within this space. 
 

Answer: To be determined; Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 
149.  Please clarify if racks for this space are intended to be included within scope. 
 

Answer: Racks are included in this scope.  
 

Room 158 – De-Casing/Green room questions 
 

150.  Please specify if any AV system connectivity is required within this space. 
 

Answer: To be determined; Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 

Microphone storage room 164 questions 
 

151. What is needed for this room will potentially have a dramatic effect on budget.  A 
specific equipment list will need to be developed/provided in order to provide accurate 
pricing. 
 

Answer: Refer 2.14.4 ADD NO. 5 
 

Reception room 150 questions 
 

152. Please clarify if there are any functionality, size, or make/model requirements for a 
desk, chair, and small storage cabinet. 
 

Answer: Not in this scope. 
 

Other spaces questions 
 

153.  Please clarify if the AV systems indicated in the construction drawings are 
included within in the scope of this bid, specifically those indicated in the AV Series 
drawings.  
 

Answer:  Not in scope. 
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EXHIBIT C-REVISED 
FINANCIAL PROPOSAL 

 
Having carefully reviewed the specifications and related documents affecting the proposal to equip and 
install a sound recording technology studio in the newly renovated Fine Arts Building located on the campus 
of  Stephen F. Austin State University, the undersigned submits the following Financial Proposal in 
accordance with the Request for Proposal documents: 
 
Respondent Name:    
Authorized Signature:    
 

 
 

1. Please  sign this document on signature line above and complete the excel worksheet 
labeled “Exhibit C Revised Financial Proposal Worksheet”  attached to this Addendum No. 
5 in its entirety.  Note: This revision replaces the original Exhibit C and excel worksheet 
included in this RFP. 

 
   

2. Provide a listing of recommended manufacturer line offerings you propose to provide as 
options for this turn-key sound recording technology studio project. (Unit costs are not 
required for submittal response) 
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PROCUREMENT AND BUSINESS SERVICES 
P. O. Box 13030 

NACOGDOCHES, TX  75962 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 
 

RFP NUMBER 
SOUND RECORDING TECHNOLOGY STUDIO-23 

 
ADDENDUM NO. 4 
DATED:  10/24/2022 

 
PROPOSAL MUST BE RECEIVED BEFORE: 
5:00PM, WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 16, 2022 

 
 HAND DELIVER AND/OR 

MAIL PROPOSAL TO: EXPRESS MAIL TO: 
 

Stephen F. Austin State University                     Stephen F. Austin State University 
Procurement and Business Services                    Procurement and Business Services 

P. O. Box 13030, SFA Station                   2102 Alumni Drive, Austin Bldg., Room 131                                                                             
Nacogdoches, TX  75962-3030                                  Nacogdoches, TX  75962 

 
 

Show RFP Number, Due Date and Time on Return Envelope 
 

NOTE:  PROPOSAL must be time stamped at Stephen F. Austin State University 
Procurement and Business Services before the hour and date specified for receipt of proposal. 

 
REFER INQUIRIES TO: 

 
Kim Jones 

Stephen F. Austin State University 
Procurement and Business Services 

936.468.6551 
email: joneskk2@sfasu.edu  

mailto:joneskk2@sfasu.edu


Stephen F. Austin State University RFP SOUND RECORDING TECH STUDIO-23 ADDENDUM NO. 4 

 

STEPHEN F. AUSTIN STATE UNIVERSITY 
Request for Proposal # 

SOUND RECORDING TECH STUDIO-23 
 

PROPOSAL MUST BE RECEIVED BEFORE: 
*5:00PM, WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 16, 2022 

 
ADDENDUM NO. 4  

 
THIS ADDENDUM DOES NOT HAVE TO BE ACKNOWLEDGED FOR THE RESPONSE TO RECEIVE 

CONSIDERATION. 
 

*UPDATES IN RED 
 

1.4 SCHEDULE OF EVENTS* 
*DATE  EVENT  

September 28, 2022 Issuance of Request for Proposal  

October 4, 2022 at 11:30  Recommended Zoom Meeting-See Section 3.2 

October 20, 2022 by 5:00 PM Deadline for Questions 

November 4, 2022 by 5:00 PM  Question and Answer Addenda Document Posted, if any 

November 16, 2022  Requests for Proposals Due  

November 17, 2022 at 9:00am Proposals Opened  

November 17 – 30, 2022 Evaluation of Proposals and Selection of Finalist and/or 
Negotiations 

December 2, 2022  Notification of Award 

December 19, 2022 Fully executed Agreement 

January 2 2023 Scope of Work to begin 
*Dates are tentative and subject to change; time listed is Central Standard Time  

 
3.2 RECOMMENDED ZOOM MEETING/SITE VISIT  
 
 A recommended Zoom meeting will be scheduled for October 4, 2022 at 11:30am Central Time.  

All questions will be required to be submitted via email to bids@sfasu.edu no later than October 
20, 2022 at 5:00pm in order to be answered and published via an addendum on November 4, 
2022 by 5:00 pm. Please call the Procurement and Business Office main line at 936.468.2206 to 
be scheduled to be included in this Zoom Meeting.  Please make sure you do this prior to October 
4, 2022.  The Meeting ID and passcode will be given to you at the time you call.  Please be sure to 
provide company name, contact name, email and phone number at the time that you call.   

 
3.2.1     Any interested vendor may choose to perform a site visit ONLY between October 4th-12th 2022, 

however due to the expedited process, it is not required.  To coordinate and schedule a site visit 
please reach out to Jessica DeWitt, jdewitt@projectcontrol.com, or call 936.468.1993. 

 
3.3 SUBMITTAL DEADLINE AND LOCATION 
 

mailto:bids@sfasu.edu
mailto:jdewitt@projectcontrol.com
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3.3.1 All proposals must be received by SFA no later than 5:00pm, Wednesday, November 16, 
2022. 

 
3.3.4 Proposals will be publicly opened Thursday, November 17, 2022 at 9:00am in the office of 

Procurement and Business Services, 2102 Alumni Drive, Austin Building, Room 131.  Only 
the names of the Respondents will be read aloud. 

 
NOTE:  OTHER ADDENDUMS TO FOLLOW.  PLEASE WATCH FOR 

ADDENDUMS TO BE ISSUED AND POSTED ON OUR WEBSITE. 
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PROCUREMENT AND BUSINESS SERVICES 
P. O. Box 13030 

NACOGDOCHES, TX  75962 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 
 

RFP NUMBER 
SOUND RECORDING TECHNOLOGY STUDIO-23 

 
ADDENDUM NO. 3 
DATED:  10/13/2022 

 
PROPOSAL MUST BE RECEIVED BEFORE: 
5:00PM, WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 2, 2022 

 
 HAND DELIVER AND/OR 

MAIL PROPOSAL TO: EXPRESS MAIL TO: 
 

Stephen F. Austin State University                     Stephen F. Austin State University 
Procurement and Business Services                    Procurement and Business Services 

P. O. Box 13030, SFA Station                   2102 Alumni Drive, Austin Bldg., Room 131                               
Nacogdoches, TX  75962-3030                                  Nacogdoches, TX  75962 

 
 

Show RFP Number, Due Date and Time on Return Envelope 
 

NOTE:  PROPOSAL must be time stamped at Stephen F. Austin State University 
Procurement and Business Services before the hour and date specified for receipt of proposal. 

 
REFER INQUIRIES TO: 

 
Kim Jones 

Stephen F. Austin State University 
Procurement and Business Services 

936.468.6551 
email: joneskk2@sfasu.edu  
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STEPHEN F. AUSTIN STATE UNIVERSITY 
Request for Proposal # 

SOUND RECORDING TECH STUDIO-23 
 

PROPOSAL MUST BE RECEIVED BEFORE: 
*5:00PM, WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 2, 2022 

 
ADDENDUM NO. 3  

 
*UPDATES IN RED 

 
1.4 SCHEDULE OF EVENTS* 

*DATE   EVENT  

September 28, 2022  Issuance of Request for Proposal  

October 4, 2022 at 11:30  Recommended Zoom Meeting-See Section 3.2 

October 20, 2022 by 5:00 PM Deadline for Questions 

October 24, 2022 by 5:00 PM   Question and Answer Addenda Document Posted, if any 

November 2, 2022   Requests for Proposals Due  

November 3, 2022 at 9:00am Proposals Opened  

November 4 – 11, 2022  Evaluation of Proposals and Selection of Finalist and/or 
Negotiations 

November 14, 2022   Notification of Award 

November 28, 2022 Fully executed Agreement 

November 29, 2022  Scope of Work to begin 

*Dates are tentative and subject to change; time listed is Central Standard Time  
 
3.2 RECOMMENDED ZOOM MEETING/SITE VISIT  
 
 A recommended Zoom meeting will be scheduled for October 4, 2022 at 11:30am Central Time.  

All questions will be required to be submitted via email to bids@sfasu.edu no later than 
October 20, 2022 at 5:00pm in order to be answered and published via an addendum on 
October 24, 2022 by 5:00 pm. Please call the Procurement and Business Office main line at 
936.468.2206 to be scheduled to be included in this Zoom Meeting.  Please make sure you do this 
prior to October 4, 2022.  The Meeting ID and passcode will be given to you at the time you call.  
Please be sure to provide company name, contact name, email and phone number at the time that 
you call.   

 
3.2.1     Any interested vendor may choose to perform a site visit ONLY between October 4th-12th 2022, 

however due to the expedited process, it is not required.  To coordinate and schedule a site visit 
please reach out to Jessica DeWitt, jdewitt@projectcontrol.com, or call 936.468.1993. 

 
3.3 SUBMITTAL DEADLINE AND LOCATION 
 
3.3.1 All proposals must be received by SFA no later than 5:00pm, Wednesday, November 2, 

2022. 
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3.3.4 Proposals will be publicly opened Thursday, November 3, 2022 at 9:00am in the office of 

Procurement and Business Services, 2102 Alumni Drive, Austin Building, Room 131.  Only 
the names of the Respondents will be read aloud. 

 
NOTE:  OTHER ADDENDUMS TO FOLLOW.  PLEASE WATCH FOR 

ADDENDUMS TO BE ISSUED AND POSTED ON OUR WEBSITE. 
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PROCUREMENT AND BUSINESS SERVICES 
P. O. Box 13030 

NACOGDOCHES, TX  75962 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 
 

RFP NUMBER 
SOUND RECORDING TECHNOLOGY STUDIO-23 

 
ADDENDUM NO. 2 
DATED:  10/12/2022 

 
PROPOSAL MUST BE RECEIVED BEFORE: 

5:00PM, FRIDAY, OCTOBER 28, 2022 
 

 HAND DELIVER AND/OR 
MAIL PROPOSAL TO: EXPRESS MAIL TO: 

 
Stephen F. Austin State University                     Stephen F. Austin State University 
Procurement and Business Services                    Procurement and Business Services 

P. O. Box 13030, SFA Station                   2102 Alumni Drive, Austin Bldg., Room 131                                                                             
Nacogdoches, TX  75962-3030                                  Nacogdoches, TX  75962 

 
 

Show RFP Number, Due Date and Time on Return Envelope 
 

NOTE:  PROPOSAL must be time stamped at Stephen F. Austin State University 
Procurement and Business Services before the hour and date specified for receipt of proposal. 

 
REFER INQUIRIES TO: 

 
Kim Jones 

Stephen F. Austin State University 
Procurement and Business Services 

936.468.6551 
email: joneskk2@sfasu.edu  

mailto:joneskk2@sfasu.edu
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STEPHEN F. AUSTIN STATE UNIVERSITY 
Request for Proposal # 

SOUND RECORDING TECH STUDIO-23 
 

PROPOSAL MUST BE RECEIVED BEFORE: 
*5:00PM, FRIDAY, OCTOBER 28, 2022 

 
ADDENDUM NO. 2  

 
*UPDATES IN RED 

 
2.3 EDITING CLASSROOM  146 (SEE REVISED FINANCIAL PROPOSAL WORKSHEET – EXHIBIT 
A) 

 
2.3.1 This room will be used for larger occupancy lectures, classes that require large visual aids, and 

editing instructions just to name a few topics. The classroom will also serve as the area’s lab 
during non-instruction time. This room will service many classes that require professional 
surround sound and visual systems for multimedia and recording arts instruction/demonstrations. 
Classes such as Music Editing, Film Music, Multimedia Sound Techniques, and Digital 
Orchestration are just a couple of examples of classes that will meet here. 

 
 

 
 
Currently, the SRT area is not able to present an accurate and all-inclusive needed component list 
as listed above. Vendor consultation will be needed to formulate such a list.  
 

1. QTY 3 - Native Instrument Komplete Kontrol S49 Keyboards are needed 
a. QTY 9: Novation Impulse 25 25-key Keyboard Controller 

 
2. MDR-7506s headphones are not needed.  

 
3. Furman power conditioners are not needed for each workstation. One to two centralized 

conditioners will be sufficient. 

DESCRIPTION Basis of Design / Manuf Quantity Functional Area Room #
24" iMac, M2 chip, 32 GB, 1TB + keyboard & mouse Mac 12 Lab 146
Scarlett 4i4, 4 in 4 out audio interface Focusrite 12 Lab 146
Launchkey 25 MK2 Keyboard Controller Novation 12 Lab 146
MDR-7506 Headphones, Foldable, Closed 
Circumaural Sony 12 Lab 146
Power Conditioner, compact, non-rack mounted Furman 12 Lab 146
R10 Ten Space 500 Series Rack Rupert Neve Designs 2 Lab 146
Allowance, NTE - Additional virtual plug-ins n/a 12 Lab 146
Wave Diamond Bundle, electronic delivery Waves 5 Lab 146
iZotope Music Production Suite 3 EDU iZotope 5 Lab 146
Native Instruments Komplete Native Instruments 5 Lab 146
AbletonLive Ableton 5 Lab 146
Avid Pro Tools HDX Core + Pro Tools Ult Software Avid 5 Lab 146
Avid Pro Tools HDX Core Card Avid 1 Lab 146

Rednet A16R Interface, with redundant networking Focusrite 5 Lab 146
Rednet PCIeR Card Focusrite 1 Lab 146
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4. We do not know what the R10 Ten Space 500 Series Rack is for in this room.  
 

5. Waves Diamond is not needed. Waves Gold is sufficient 
 

6. Native Instruments Komplete Ultimate is needed 
 

7. We do not need line item QTY 5: Avid Pro Tools HDX Core Card + Pro Tools for the editing 
room.  
 

2.3.2 Equipment Needs: 
 

A/V: This room will service many classes that require professional surround sound and 
visual systems for multimedia and recording arts instruction/demonstrations. Classes 
such as Music Editing, Film Music, Multimedia Sound Techniques, and Digital 
Orchestration are just a couple of examples of classes that will meet here. Either a large 
TV or silent operations projector are needed. A minimum of a 7.2.4 Dolby Atmos surround 
system is needed. Focal Trio 6be or equivalent is needed. 
 
Lecture/professor station – Rack mount for audio equipment and future expansion. Audio 
Interface must be a Red Line 8 or 16 to meet input/output requirements as well as 
matching equipment compatibility. HDMI connection to Project or TV. Special note: in 
design review, it appeared that a 98” screen and a secondary 75” screen was programmed 
for the room. Must ensure that these units are silent or low-noise operating 
panels/equipment. 

 
Desk and furniture are already taken care of by SFA design team. 

 
Computers and Audio Equipment: There needs to be 12 mac computers of reasonable 
specifications to run advanced video and audio software. 24” iMacs with M2 chips, 32GB 
or Ram, and 1TB hard drives are the minimum specs we need. Audio interfaces for each 
lab station is needed. Focusrite Scarlett 2i2 would be acceptable but Focusrite Clarett 
+2pre preferred. Power conditioners for all systems needed. 
 

2.4 ISO BOOTH 147 
 

2.4.1 Within the lab/classroom 146 is a recording isolation booth. This booth will be used for course topic 
recording demonstrations and student recording activities. A recording station just outside of 
146 is planned. A small production desk is planned by the design center. This desk will 
exclusively be for recording the 147 booth. An iMac with the aforementioned specs is 
needed. A set of *Focal Shape 65s or better are needed for accurate playback/tracking 
demonstrations for class. A microphone boom arm to attach to the desk is needed. An SM7b 
is needed for the talkback system and will attach to desk boom. Power conditioner is 
needed. Dante enabled interface is needed. Two Focusrite X2Ps are required for Booth 147. 
Music stands, microphone stands, cabling, and connectors will be needed. 

 
*Description 
 Focal Shape 65 Compact Powered Monitor - Single Speaker 
 Focal Pro Shape Twin Active Studio Monitor- Single, 2.5-way speaker 
 Focal Shape 50 Compact Powered Monitor - Single Speaker 
 Focal Sub6 - Single, Red, active subwoofer 
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2.5 RECEPTION 150 

 
2.5.1 We need a small desk, office chair, and small storage cabinet. We already have a computer 

for this station. 
 
2.6 OFFICE/PRODUCTION SUITE 149 

 
2.6.1 This room will be a dedicated post-production/mastering room for students, faculty, and special 

projects. A production center desk with rack mount connections should be supplied by the 
design center. Acoustic treatment will be needed if not supplied by builder – London Prima 
Acoustic Panels and diffusers should be sufficient.  

 
Computer: Mac Studio with 32-inch 4k IPS Monitor. 
 
Audio: This is a special purpose room for highly accurate sonic playback. Minimum of 
Barefoot Footprint 02s or *Focal Shape 65s or equivalent studio monitors required. A 
mastering grade subwoofer is required: Dynaudio 18s or equivalent. A Focusrite Line 8 
audio interface is required. A patch bay is required to integrate outboard mastering 
equipment. A modest array of outboard post-production equipment is needed 
(compressors, eqs, etc.). 
 

*Description 
 Focal Shape 65 Compact Powered Monitor - Single Speaker 
 Focal Pro Shape Twin Active Studio Monitor- Single, 2.5-way speaker 
 Focal Shape 50 Compact Powered Monitor - Single Speaker 
 Focal Sub6 - Single, Red, active subwoofer 

 
Special Note: ideally, this room would be equipped with a surround sound system, however, 
this could be expanded in the future. 
 

2.7 OFFICE/PRODUCTION SUITE 152 
 
2.7.1     This room is a faculty production suite. In addition to typical faculty activities, mixing and post-  

production lessons, critical listening, and evaluations occur in this room. The design center has 
been notified of the desk requirements. Acoustic treatment will be needed if not provided 
by builder. All the equipment for this room is acquired. Mounting equipment and 
resources for system installation will be needed. Installation of Dolby Atmos system, which is 
already acquired, will be needed. 

 
2.8 OFFICE/PRODUCTION SUITE 153 
 
2.8.1      This room is a faculty production suite. In addition to typical faculty activities, mixing and post-  
              production lessons are giving in this room. The design center has been notified of the desk 

requirements. Acoustic treatment will be needed if not provided by builder. A professional 
Dante enable interface will be needed for this room - a Focusrite Red line 8 is required. 
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2.9 STUDIO A (SEE REVISED FINANCIAL PROPOSAL WORKSHEET – EXHIBIT A)  
 
2.9.1     Studio A Overview: 
  

This is our flagship studio. In this studio, 3rd and 4th year undergraduate students and graduate 
students will be trained in modern studio operations, techniques, and music production. Hands-on 
courses and special studio ensembles will occur daily. Music ensemble performances, recording 
sessions, and classes will occur daily in this studio. This area must be fully equipped to record 
chamber orchestra, large hybrid ensembles, choir, jazz bands, and modern popular ensembles. 
In addition to educational use, this area will also be used for special event studio concerts, master 
classes, and multimedia collaborations and events. 
 

2.9.2     Control Room 165 
 

This room is designed to be a professional level studio control and education room. It has been 
designed to suit our pedagogical goals and meet industry standards, norms, and expectations.  

 

 
 
The *5088 Console Configuration consists of the following: 
 

 
 

2.9.2     Control Room 165 
 
This room is designed to be a professional level studio control and education room. It has 
been designed in collaboration with our SRT faculty to suit our pedagogical goals and 
meet industry standards, norms, and expectations. The room has been designed with the 
Rupert Neve 5088 64 channel console with Swift Mix in mind. The console will require a 
myriad of standard patch bays, wiring, and outboard gear to operate as designed. The 
console will require professional installation.  
 
 
 
 

DESCRIPTION Basis of Design / Manuf Quantity Functional Area Room #
Rupert Neve Designs 5088 Console, Custom Build
64 Channel 5088 w/Producer Desk *details below Rupert Neve Designs 1 Studio A 165
Allowance, NTE - Console Upgrade Package Rupert Neve Designs 1 Studio A 165
SCM200 Large Format Powered 3 Way Monitor + 
matching subwoofers ATC 1 Studio A 165
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The *5088 Console Configuration consists of the following: 
 

 
  

Sound System 1 – Mains: The “Mains” sound system has been specified as an *ATC 2.2 
system. It is very important that the ATC engineers speak with the builders to ensure that 
the Soffit mount is correctly constructed for the specified system.  
 

 
  
 
Sound System 2 – Mid and Near Field Monitors: In addition to the large mains, smaller mid 
and near field monitors will be needed. For the Mid fields, Focal Trio 11be or Barefoot 
MicroMain 27 or equivalent. For the near fields, Barefoot Footprint 01s or *Focal Shape 65s 
are needed.  
 
*Description 
 Focal Shape 65 Compact Powered Monitor - Single Speaker 
 Focal Pro Shape Twin Active Studio Monitor- Single, 2.5-way speaker 
 Focal Shape 50 Compact Powered Monitor - Single Speaker 
 Focal Sub6 - Single, Red, active subwoofer 

 
Outboard gear (external sound processors): 

 
The room is designed for the outboard gear to be on the far wall to the right of the sitting 
engineer. A wide array of industry standard external processing equipment is needed. This 
includes but is not limited to: Compressors, Equalizers, FX Processors, Preamplifiers, DI, 
Etc. 
 
All the interconnectivity for a studio is needed.  
 

Qty Description
1 5088 16 Shelford Channel Master
3 5088 16 Channel Expander
1 5088 Penthouse, 25 posistion Main
3 5088 Penthouse, 16 posistion Expander
1 5088 Meterbridge, Main, 24 Channel VU, Shelford
3 5088 Meterbridge, Expander, 16 Channel VU, Shelford
1 64 Channle Swift Mix System
1 Swiftmix Master Controller
64 5052 Shelford Mic Pre/Inductor EQ
3 5088 PH/ Shelford 25-way power supply
1 5088 Producers Desk, with Penthouse and Meterbridge
2 Crage, Large, 32 channel

*Description
ATC SCM 300 - Pair (includes 2xP4 amsp & 5Mcable)
ATC SCM 0.1/1.5/customer 2x15 sub PAIR (includes remote amp hardware & 5Mcable)
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Special note: large viewing screens for the computer will be needed. No projectors. The 
computer system will be remotely located in the SRT Server Room. See server room for 
more details. A video system for seeing and communicating with musicians in 166A, 166B, 
and 166C will be needed and should be included in the build plan as it was programmed 
for this system years ago.  
 

2.9.3     166 – Main Studio 
 

Equipped for a variety of recording situations, up to, but not limited, chamber orchestra.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DESCRIPTION Basis of Design / Manuf Quantity Functional Area Room #
Yamaha C6X 7' Concert Grand Piano Yamaha 1 Studio A 166
Fender Rumble 100 1x12" 100-watt Bass Combo 
Amp Fender 2 Studio A 166
Fender Champion 100 2x12" 100-watt Combo Amp Fender 2 Studio A 166
GRAMMA v2 Isolation Riser - Single (platform) Auralex 4 Studio A 166
JDX 48, Active class-A reactive speaker emulation 
direct box Radial Engineering 1 Studio A 166
ST2 Pro Optimizer, 4ea - digital & analog, input & 
output, 4 processing channels, 2 BNC connectors for 
in/out world clock, with Bundle Optimizer 
Runtime4 + Optimizer Toolbox4 Trinnov 1 Studio A 166
3D Measurement Probe, Microphone Trinnov 1 Studio A 166
Allowance (NTE) - Movable acoustic isolation 
panels Gik Acoustics 1 Studio A 166
8-channel Microphone Preamplifier, M-801 Grace Design 1 Studio A 166
Limiting Amplifier, 1176 LN Universal Audio 2 Studio A 166
Leveling Amplifier, LA-2A Universal Audio 1 Studio A 166
Opto Tube Compressor (mono),  CL 1B Tube Tech 1 Studio A 166
Two-band EQ, EQP-1A Program Equalizer Pultec 1 Studio A 166
Stereo Tube EQ, Manley Massive Passive Manley 1 Studio A 166
Classic Tube Recording Channel, LA-610 Mk II Universal Audio 1 Studio A 166
VHD 500 Series Mic Pre SSL (solid state logic) 2 Studio A 166
Discrete Mic / Line Pre, 512C API Audio 2 Studio A 166
Three-Band Equalizer, 550A API Audio 2 Studio A 166
500 Series microphone preamp, TG2-500 Chandler Limited 1 Studio A 166
 SSL Stereo Bus Compressor Module for 500 Series SSL (solid state logic) 1 Studio A 166
Analog processing tool, Fusion SSL (solid state logic) 1 Studio A 166
Parametric Equalizer, MEA-2 Mastering Equalizer Maselec 1 Studio A 166
Mastering Equalizer, 6-band EQ4M Dual Channel 
Mastering EQ Magg 1 Studio A 166
UnderTone Audio UnFairchild 670M II UnderTone 1 Studio A 166
Allowance (NTE) - Addt'l Outboard Eqs, 
Compressors, Mics, Monitoring, etc. 1 Studio A 166
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2.9.3     166 – Main Studio 
 

A full-size grand piano with bench is needed – Yamaha C7X (preferred) or C6X. An 
assortment of different sized GOBOs, enough for a variety of recording situations, 
particularly chamber orchestra, are needed. A large array and count of microphone stands 
for daily studio operations are needed. One large and several medium and small rugs are 
needed. A very large high-resolution size is needed for the west wall – silent operation 
displays only. There will need to be several screens in this room for the visual feedback 
system. I am not sure if that is already handled by the build team as it was a line item in 
past meetings. 
We need at least 12 Red Net AM2s, headphone splitter/amps, and enough headphones for 
a chamber orchestra/large jazz band. Conversation with vendors needed. We need enough 
playback equipment for large session. 
 
Large playback monitors positioned over or at the sides of the control room window 
needed. 
 

2.9.4     166D – ISO Booth (Drum) 
 

 
 

Only a 4-piece drum set is specified above. Please note that cymbals, hardware, double-
pedals, hit-hat stand, cymbal and ride stand, etc. will be needed. A complete package is 
necessary. 

A RedNet X2P is needed for Talkback and Headphone monitoring. Drum rug needed. 
Music Stand, chair, and small corner table for water bottles are needed. 
 
 

2.9.5     166B – ISO BOTH (VOICE) 
 

 
 

One Focusrite X2P, one ultimate heavy duty stand to accommodate heavy microphones, 
music stand, alternative ambient lighting system, music stand lamp, high resolution 
screen(s) and camera for control/studio room visual feedback system. This may be taken 
care of by build team as part of the whole studio visual system. 
 

2.9.6    166C – ISO BOOTH 
 

 

 

DESCRIPTION Basis of Design / Manuf Quantity Functional Area Room #
4 Piece Performance Drum Set DW 1 Studio A 166D

ClearSonic A2466x7 7-Section Drum Isolation Shield Clear Sonic 1 Studio A 166D
X2P audio amplifier Focusrite 1 Studio A 166D

DESCRIPTION Basis of Design / Manuf Quantity Functional Area Room #
X2P audio amplifier Focusrite 1 Studio A 166B

DESCRIPTION Basis of Design / Manuf Quantity Functional Area Room #
X2P audio amplifier Focusrite 1 Studio A 166C
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MC-125 STUDIO SERIES MIC STAND Needed 
 

Two Ultimate Heavy duty stands, two music stands, alternative ambient lighting system, 
music stand lamp one Focusrite X2P, one Focusrite AM2, high resolution screen(s) and 
camera for control/studio room visual feedback system, couple musician chairs. 

 
2.9.7     Storage 164 (Microphone Room) (We failed to list in the original RFP document) 
 

This is where our microphone and specialty equipment collection for the facility will be 
stored. The list of microphones needed for the facility is extensive. Discussion with 
vendors to assess availability of products is needed in order to compose a microphone 
parts list. 
 

2.9.8     166A (We failed to list in the original RFP document) 
 

No A/V needed 
 

2.10     STUDIO B (SEE REVISED FINANCIAL PROPOSAL WORKSHEET – EXHIBIT A) 
 

2.10.1   Studio B Overview 
 

Studio B is our smaller, modern studio designed for smaller recording demonstrations and advanced 
surround sound recording topics.  
 

2.10.2    Control 163  

 

 
There is a multitude of components that will be needed to integrate our existing SSL 
948 (2005 version) into Control Room 163.  A sufficient Dolby Atmos System (7.2.4) is 
required.  A mid-field monitor and a set of mains will be needed.  SFA already has 
near-field monitors.  We will also need a full-capacity paired patch-bay with a few 
component additions to the existing sound recording technology to facilitate 
foundational operation needs. (Some examples would include Pro Tools Ultimate, Avid 
HDX Core Card, Mac Pro computer, AD/DA converters with Dante integration, Atmos 
Render, Waves Diamond, Izotope Everything Bundle, and Ableton Live.) 
 
SFA is not able to give a complete itemized list without vendor consultation. 
 

 
 

DESCRIPTION Basis of Design / Manuf Quantity Functional Area Room #
Focal Shape 65 - Compact Powered Monitor, Single 
Speaker Focal 2 Studio B 163

Allowance (NTE) Custom Build, Apple Mac Pro Rack Mac 1 Studio B 163
MiniMain 12 - Pair / 4-Way Active Monitors Barefoot Sound 1 Studio B 163
MiniMain 12 Stands - Pair / Sound anchor stand for 
MM12 Barefoot Sound 1 Studio B 163
R10 Ten Space 500 Series Rack Rupert Neve Designs 2 Studio B 163
MicroMain 27 Gen 2 Pair, 3-way 
nearfield/main/mastering monitor pair Barefoot Sound 1 Studio B 163
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2.10.3   Tracking Room 161 
 

 
 

Drum set and piano already acquired.  SFA will need an assortment of GOBO’s furniture, rugs, 
talk back speakers with mounting near control room window, 5 Red Net AM2’s 6 sets of 
tracking headphones. 

 
2.10.4   AV Network 159 Overview 
 

This is the SRT facility dedicated equipment room. Existing RedNet and Dante remote computer 
systems will be located here.  
 

1. Although existing SRT Red Net equipment will be brought over to the new facility, Studio 
A will need a full set of Dante enabled AD/DA and D/D converters. Studio B will need 
additions/upgrades as well. SRT does not have all the equipment needed for the AV Room. 

2. Build team needs to be consulted on what they are supplying for the video system and the 
AV Room.  

3. Dante compatible enterprise class network switches will be needed. The number of 
needed switches will vary greatly depending on the building’s configuration. At one point 
in the building development, this room was going to serve as the Dante hub for the whole 
building. If that is still the case, the number of switches needed will greatly increase. 

DESCRIPTION Basis of Design / Manuf Quantity Functional Area Room #
Allowance (NTE) - Movable acoustic isolation 
panels Gik Acoustics 1 Studio B 161
Stereo Tube EQ, Manley Massive Passive Manley 1 Studio B 161
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EXHIBIT A 
 

REVISED FINANCIAL PROPOSAL WORKSHEET 
(SEPARATE ATTACHMENT – EXCEL 

WORKSHEET) 
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EXHIBIT B 
 

EXISTING SFA SOUND RECORDING 
TECHNOLOGY INVENTORY (HARDWARE AND 

MICROPHONE INVENTORY) 
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SFA SRT Exisiting Studio B Hardware Inventory Fall 2022

Gear Type Qty Notes
Console Equipment

SSL 948 Console (2005) 1 DAW Controller Mode not operational

Focusrite Red Net 2 AD/DA 2
Upgrade Need to A16R for redundant 
capabilities

Focusrite A16r AD/DA 1

Focusrite Red Net 5 D/D (Pro Tools Bridge) 2
Upgrade Need to HD32R for redundant 
capabilities

Focusrite PCiE Card D/D Interface 1
Avid Pro Tools HDX Card Pro Tools Interface 1
Sonnet Thunderbolt 2 PCiE expansion PCiE to Thunderbolt Adap 1
Redco TT/DB 25 96pt Patch Bay Patch Bay 4

DB 25 Connectivity Cables Cables
Only some of our DB-25 cables will be 
appropriate lengths to be reused in Studio B

Switchcraft 8X8 IO Patchbay 1 For controlroom mic/line connectivity

Outboard Gear
Warm Audio WA-21 Compressor 1
Warm Audio WA-76 Compressor 1
Purple Audio MC-77 Compressor 1
Distressor EL8X Compressor 2
API 527A Compressor 1
Avalone AD-2022 Preamplifer 1
Avalone VT 737SP Preamplifer 2
API512V Preamplifer 2
API 6 Solt Lunchbox 500 Series Chassis 1
Rupert Neve Designs 511 Preamplifer 2
UA-710D Preamplifer 1
Speck MicPre 5.0 Preamplifer 1
Presonus ADL 700 Preamplifer 1

Monitoring
Barefoot Footprint 01s Studio Monitor 2
Avatone MixCubes Reference Monitor 2
SVS SB-4000s Subwoofer/LFE 2
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SFA SRT Exisiting Microphone Inventory Fall 2022

Microphone Type Qty

AKG C460 B Small Diaphram Condenser 2
Apex 460 Tube Large Diaphram Conde 1
CAD Equitek E-350 Large Diaphram Condenser 2
AKG C414 Large Diaphram Condenser 4
Sennheiser MD421 Dynamic Studio Microphone 3
Shure SM7B Dynamic Vocal Microphone 1
Technics RP-3500E Electret Condenser Micropho 1
Peavy PVM 380N Dynamic Microphone 3
Nady SP1 Dynamic Microphone 1
Sennheiser EW100 Wireless Lavalier Microphone 1
Auidix i5 Dynamic Drum Microphone 1
Auidix D2 Dynamic Drum Microphone 2
Audix D4 Dynamic Drum Microphone 1
Auidx D6 Dynamic Bass Drum Microph 1
Neumann U87 Ai Large Diaphram Condenser 4
Rode NT2A Large Diaphram Condenser 2
Shure SM58 Dynamic Microphone 4
Shure SM57 Dynamic Microphone 4
Audio-Technica Pro37 Small Diaphram Condenser 5
Shure SM81 Small Diaphram Condenser 2
Neumann KM184 Small Diaphram Condenser 2
Shure KSM 313 Ribbon Microphone 1
DPA 4099 P Stereo Microphone System 2
Blue Bluebird Large Diaphram Condenser 1
Electro-Voice RE-20 Dynamic Microphone 6
Rode NT5 Small Diaphram Condenser 2
Rode NT4 XY Small Diaphram Condens 1
Rode NTG-2 Hyper-Cardioid Condenser M 1
Ryer 121 Ribbon Microphone 1
Beta 91A Proxi-Condenser 1
Audio-Technica 4041 Small Diaphram Condenser 2
Telefunken TF51 Large Diaphram Condenser 1
Wamr Audio WA-8000 Large Diaphram Condenser 1
Soyuz 017 FET Large Diaphram Condenser 1
AEA R88 Stereo Microphone System 1
Warm Audio WA-47 Large Diaphram Condenser 1
Apex 460 Large Diaphram Condenser 1
Royer R-10 Ribbon Microphone 1
Earthworks QTC 30 Small Diaphram Condenser 3
Earthworks M30 Measurement Mic 1
Earthworks Flexwand 730 Small Diaphram Condenser 2
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PROCUREMENT AND BUSINESS SERVICES 
P. O. Box 13030 

NACOGDOCHES, TX  75962 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 
 

RFP NUMBER 
SOUND RECORDING TECHNOLOGY STUDIO-23 

 
ADDENDUM NO. 1 
DATED:  10/05/2022 

 
PROPOSAL MUST BE RECEIVED BEFORE: 

5:00PM, FRIDAY, OCTOBER 28, 2022 
 

 HAND DELIVER AND/OR 
MAIL PROPOSAL TO: EXPRESS MAIL TO: 

 
Stephen F. Austin State University                     Stephen F. Austin State University 
Procurement and Business Services                    Procurement and Business Services 

P. O. Box 13030, SFA Station                   2102 Alumni Drive, Austin Bldg., Room 131                                                                             
Nacogdoches, TX  75962-3030                                  Nacogdoches, TX  75962 

 
 

Show RFP Number, Due Date and Time on Return Envelope 
 

NOTE:  PROPOSAL must be time stamped at Stephen F. Austin State University 
Procurement and Business Services before the hour and date specified for receipt of proposal. 

 
REFER INQUIRIES TO: 

 
Kim Jones 

Stephen F. Austin State University 
Procurement and Business Services 

936.468.6551 
email: joneskk2@sfasu.edu  

mailto:joneskk2@sfasu.edu
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STEPHEN F. AUSTIN STATE UNIVERSITY 
Request for Proposal # 

SOUND RECORDING TECH STUDIO-23 
 

PROPOSAL MUST BE RECEIVED BEFORE: 
*5:00PM, FRIDAY, OCTOBER 28, 2022 

 
ADDENDUM NO. 1  

 
*UPDATES IN RED 

 
1.4 SCHEDULE OF EVENTS* 

*DATE  EVENT  

September 28, 2022 Issuance of Request for Proposal  

October 4, 2022 at 11:30  Recommended Zoom Meeting-See Section 3.2 

October 13, 2022 by 5:00 PM Deadline for Questions 

October 17, 2022 by 5:00 PM  Question and Answer Addenda Document Posted, if any 

October 28, 2022  Requests for Proposals Due  

October 31, 2022 at 8:30am Proposals Opened  

November 1 – 7, 2022 Evaluation of Proposals and Selection of Finalist and/or 
Negotiations 

November 9, 2022  Notification of Award 

November 18, 2022 Fully executed Agreement 

November 28, 2022 Scope of Work to begin 
*Dates are tentative and subject to change; time listed is Central Standard Time  

 
 
3.2 RECOMMENDED ZOOM MEETING/SITE VISIT (see EXHIBIT A for attendees) 
 
 A recommended Zoom meeting will be scheduled for October 4, 2022 at 11:30am Central Time.  

All questions will be required to be submitted via email to bids@sfasu.edu  no later than October 
13, 2022 at 5:00pm in order to be answered and published via an addendum on October 17, 2022 
by 5:00 pm. Please call the Procurement and Business Office main line at 936.468.2206 to be 
scheduled to be included in this Zoom Meeting.  Please make sure you do this prior to October 4, 
2022.  The Meeting ID and passcode will be given to you at the time you call.  Please be sure to 
provide company name, contact name, email and phone number at the time that you call.   

 
3.2.1     Any interested vendor may choose to perform a site visit ONLY between October 4th-12th 2022, 

however due to the expedited process, it is not required.  To coordinate and schedule a site visit 
please reach out to Jessica DeWitt, jdewitt@projectcontrol.com, or call 936.468.1993. 

 
3.3 SUBMITTAL DEADLINE AND LOCATION 
 
3.3.1 All proposals must be received by SFA no later than 5:00pm, Friday, October 28, 2022. 
 

mailto:bids@sfasu.edu
mailto:jdewitt@projectcontrol.com
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3.3.4 Proposals will be publicly opened Monday, October 31, 2022 at 8:30am in the office of Procurement 
and Business Services, 2102 Alumni Drive, Austin Building, Room 131.  Only the names of the 
Respondents will be read aloud. 

 
NOTE:  OTHER ADDENDUMS TO FOLLOW.  PLEASE WATCH FOR 

ADDENDUMS TO BE ISSUED AND POSTED ON OUR WEBSITE. 
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EXHIBIT A 

 
VENDOR ATTENDEES AT RECOMMENDED 
ZOOM MEETING ON 10/04/2022 AT 11:30AM 

CST 
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1.  Vintage King – Chris Bolitho 

 
2. Guitar Center – Mike Merrill, Scott Yarbrough 
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Stephen F. Austin State University                     Stephen F. Austin State University 

Procurement and Business Services                    Procurement and Business Services 

P. O. Box 13030, SFA Station                   2102 Alumni Drive, Austin Bldg., Room 131                                                                             

Nacogdoches, TX  75962-3030                                  Nacogdoches, TX  75962 

 

 

Show RFP Number, Due Date and Time on Return Envelope 

 

NOTE:  PROPOSAL must be time stamped at Stephen F. Austin State University 

Procurement and Business Services before the hour and date specified for receipt of 

proposal. 

 

REFER INQUIRIES TO: 

 

Kim Jones 

Stephen F. Austin State 

University 

Procurement and Business 

Services 

936.468.6551 

email: joneskk2@sfasu.edu  

 

mailto:joneskk2@sfasu.edu
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SECTION 1 
INTRODUCTION 

 
1.1 SCOPE OF PROPOSAL 

Stephen F. Austin State University, hereafter referred to as “SFA” or “the University”, is seeking 
proposals from qualified vendors for  sound recording  studio equipment and installation at the 
studio facility within the  newly renovated Griffith Fine Arts Building .  The entire building is currently 
under construction and is estimated for completion in March 2023.  All equipment, material and 
labor will need to be provided by the contractor.  The building is located at 2222 Alumni Drive, 
Nacogdoches, Texas 75965. 

 
1.2 PROJECT TIMELINE 

The timeframe of this project is expected to begin on or around November 1, 2022 and end August 
1, 2023. 

 

1.3 SFA INFORMATION 

 

1.3.1 Stephen F. Austin State University is a comprehensive, regional institution located in Nacogdoches, 

Texas. The University enrolls approximately 11,000 students, offering approximately 80 

undergraduate majors and more than 120 areas of study within six academic colleges – business, 

education, fine arts, forestry and agriculture, liberal and applied arts, and sciences and 

mathematics. Accredited by the Southern Association of Colleges and Schools, SFA provides the 

academic breadth of a state university with the personalized attention of a private school.  

 

 Since its founding in 1923, Stephen F. Austin State University has established a reputation of 

providing a traditional, residential college experience serving approximately 3,500 students making 

SFA residence halls their home-away-from-home.  To meet the needs of these students, SFA 

employs approximately 1600 full and part-time faculty and staff and operates as an agency of the 

State of Texas. The Board of Regents is the nine-member governing body of SFA. Regents are 

appointed by the governor of Texas and serve staggered six-year terms. 

 
1.4  SCHEDULE OF EVENTS*     

*DATE  EVENT  

September 28, 2022 Issuance of Request for Proposal  

October 4, 2022 at 11:30  Recommended  Zoom Meeting-See Section 3.2 

October 6, 2022 by 5:00 PM Deadline for Questions 

October 10, 2022 by 5:00 PM  Question and Answer Addenda Document Posted, if any 

October 21, 2022  Requests for Proposals Due  

October 24, 2022 at 8:30am Proposals Opened  

October 24-28, 2022   Evaluation of Proposals and Selection of Finalist and/or 
Negotiations 

November 1, 2022  Notification of Award 

November 10, 2022 Fully executed Agreement 

November 14, 2022 Scope of Work to begin 

*Dates are tentative and subject to change; time listed is Central Standard Time  
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1.5 OPEN RECORDS 
SFA anticipates that the review of the proposals will be completed and awarded in November 

2022. Due to the nature of the proposals, the parties understand the information exchanged in 

the negotiation process is confidential to the fullest extent permitted by law, and neither party will 

disclose such information to anyone other than representatives of the negotiating parties except 

as required by Texas law.  Final awards and agreements, after all negotiations are completed, 

may be subject to open records request. Additionally, state law requires each contract for the 

purchase of goods or services to be posted on the University’s website. By entering into a 

contract with the University, the firm acknowledges and accepts the University will comply with all 

applicable laws regarding the public posting of contracts.     

 
1.6 PARKING ON CAMPUS 

 All vehicles parked on the University campus must properly display a valid parking permit and 

comply with all University parking rules.  The Parking and Traffic Office supervises and coordinates 

all parking transportation and traffic related functions on the campus.  Permits expire each August 

31.  

  
Contractor shall be responsible for obtaining parking permits from the Parking and Traffic Office 

and for resolving, should they arise, any parking regulation disputes and violations.  The Parking 

and Traffic Office telephone number is 936-468-7275  

 
1.7        GROUP PURCHASING AUTHORITY  

  Texas law authorizes institutions of higher education (defined by Section 61.003,  Education Code) 

 to use the group purchasing procurement method (ref. Section  51.9335, Education Code). 

 Additional Texas institutions of higher education may therefore elect to enter into a contract with 

 the successful Proposer under this RFP. 

 

1.8       FORCE MAJEURE   

 Neither party hereto will be liable or responsible to the other for any loss or damage or for any 
delays or failure to perform arising out of or caused, directly or indirectly, by circumstances beyond 
its reasonable control including acts of God, strikes, national, state, or local health emergency, war, 
riots, flood, fire, sabotage, governmental authority, or any other circumstances (“Force Majeure 
Occurrence”). Provided, however, in the event of a Force Majeure Occurrence, Contracting Party 
agrees to use their best efforts to mitigate the impact of the occurrence so that University may 
continue to provide mission critical services during the Force Majeure Occurrence. 

 
1.9       RIGHT TO MODIFY 

Stephen F. Austin State University reserves the rights to modify, revoke, or cancel this RFP in 
whole or in part at any time prior to the date on which SFA executes a Contract with the selected 
Respondent(s). 
 

1.10  PERFORMANCE  AND PAYMENT BONDS 
 The cost of all bonds must be included in the response. 
 

If the bid amount is greater than $100,000, a performance bond is to be provided in the amount of 
100% of the contract amount.  If the bid amount is greater than $25,000, a payment bond is to be 
provided in the amount of 100% of the contract amount.  These bonds are to be made payable to 
SFA, are to be drawn on a surety authorized to do business in the State of Texas, and are to be on 
forms acceptable to the University.   
 
Required bonds are to be delivered to the SFA Purchasing Department within ten (10) days of 
notification award.  Failure to submit the bond within the required timeframe will be considered 
breach of contract, and any contract awards, either verbal or in writing will be considered null and 
void. 
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1.11 HISTORICALLY UNDERUTILIZED BUSINESSES (HUB)  

  

SEE EXHIBIT F – HUB SUBCONTRACTING PLAN READ 
CAREFULLY  

  
Each respondent is required to make a good faith effort to subcontract with historically 

underutilized businesses and shall submit a HUB Subcontracting Plan using the HUB 

Subcontracting Plan documents provided in Exhibit F.  

  
Stephen F. Austin State University is committed to making a good faith effort to increase business 

with historically underutilized businesses (HUBs) by contracting with HUBs either directly or 

indirectly through subcontracting opportunities.  Respondents are encouraged to actively seek to 

subcontract or partner with HUBs in an effort to create an environment that actively 

acknowledges and values diversity.  

  
The university has determined that subcontracting opportunities are probable under this contract.    
  

The university’s HUB goal for this procurement is:    

22.0% for Commodities   
  
Each HUB subcontracting plan will be evaluated independently of the response.  If the HSP does 

not reflect a good faith effort to subcontract with HUBs, the entire response will be disqualified.  

  
All questions regarding the HUB Subcontracting Plan may be directed to the  

Office of Procurement and Business Services, Kay Johnson, 936-468-4037, 

johnsondk6@sfasu.edu   

  
Failure to submit the HUB Subcontracting Plan may disqualify the entire response from 

consideration 

. 
 
1.12  ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS  
  https://www.sfasu.edu/docs/procurement-business-services/purchase-order-general-terms-

conditions.pdf  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.sfasu.edu/docs/procurement-business-services/purchase-order-general-terms-conditions.pdf
https://www.sfasu.edu/docs/procurement-business-services/purchase-order-general-terms-conditions.pdf
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SECTION 2 

STATEMENT OF WORK 
 
2.1 SCOPE OF WORK 

Stephen F. Austin State University, hereafter referred to as “SFA” or “the University”, is seeking 
proposals from -qualified vendors for a turn-key sound recording technology studio for our new Fine 
Arts Building Expansion Project .  The scope of services is to furnish and install all equipment listed, 
complete patchbay system including all required design, labeling, cabling, commissioning, testing 
and training shall be complete no later than August 1, 2023. All equipment shall be compatible with 
the following university macOS software suites: ProTools, Ableton Live, Waves, Izotope Music 
Production bundles, and Native Instruments. The vendor shall provide equal, extended warranty 
on all new equipment of at least one year beyond the manufacture’s base warranty. Vendor will be 
required to field verify mounting locations, conditions, and hanging capacities and collaborate with 
the general contractor should modifications need to be made. 

 
2.2 EQUIPMENT NEEDS OVERVIEW 
 
2.2.1 Listed below is an equipment needs overview for each individual room within the new Sound 

Recording Technology (SRT) Studio located in the newly expanded Fine Arts Building. It is 
important to note that SFA is unable to supply an all-inclusive parts list until the time that the 
proposal is awarded and detailed conversations with vendors and installers can happen in order to 
develop the precise parts list, thus the inclusion of not to exceed allowances.  

 
2.3 EDITING CLASSROOM  146 

 
2.3.1 This room will be used for larger occupancy lectures, classes that require large visual aids, and 

editing instructions just to name a few topics. The classroom will also serve as the area’s lab 
during non-instruction time. This room will service many classes that require professional 
surround sound and visual systems for multimedia and recording arts instruction/demonstrations. 
Classes such as Music Editing, Film Music, Multimedia Sound Techniques, and Digital 
Orchestration are just a couple of examples of classes that will meet here. 

 

 
 

 
 

DESCRIPTION Basis of Design / Manuf Quantity Functional Area Room #

24" iMac, M2 chip, 32 GB, 1TB + keyboard & mouse Mac 12 Lab 146

Scarlett 4i4, 4 in 4 out audio interface Focusrite 12 Lab 146

Launchkey 25 MK2 Keyboard Controller Novation 12 Lab 146

MDR-7506 Headphones, Foldable, Closed 

Circumaural Sony 12 Lab 146

Power Conditioner, compact, non-rack mounted Furman 12 Lab 146

R10 Ten Space 500 Series Rack Rupert Neve Designs 2 Lab 146

Allowance, NTE - Additional virtual plug-ins n/a 12 Lab 146

Wave Diamond Bundle, electronic delivery Waves 5 Lab 146

iZotope Music Production Suite 3 EDU iZotope 5 Lab 146

Native Instruments Komplete Native Instruments 5 Lab 146

AbletonLive Ableton 5 Lab 146

Avid Pro Tools HDX Core + Pro Tools Ult Software Avid 5 Lab 146

Avid Pro Tools HDX Core Card Avid 1 Lab 146

Rednet A16R Interface, with redundant networking Focusrite 5 Lab 146

Rednet PCIeR Card Focusrite 1 Lab 146
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2.4 ISO BOOTH 147 

 

2.4.1 Within the lab/classroom 146 is a recording isolation booth. This booth will be used for course topic 

recording demonstrations and student recording activities.  

 

 

2.6 OFFICE 149 
 

2.6.1 This room will be a dedicated post-production/mastering room for students, faculty, and special 

projects.  

 

2.7 OFFICE 152 
 
2.7.1     This room is a faculty production suite. In addition to typical faculty activities, mixing and post-  

production lessons, critical listening, and evaluations occur in this room. Installation of Dolby 
Atmos system, which is already acquired, will be needed. 
 

 
 

2.8 OFFICE 153 
 
2.8.1      This room is a faculty production suite. In addition to typical faculty activities, mixing and post-  
              production lessons are giving in this room.  

 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

DESCRIPTION Basis of Design / Manuf Quantity Functional Area Room #

Allowance (NTE), Installaton of Owner Furnished 

Dolby Atmos System n/a 1 Production Office 152

DESCRIPTION Basis of Design / Manuf Quantity Functional Area Room #

Red 8 Line Thunderbolt 3 Audio Interface, 58 in/64 

out Focusrite 1 Production Office 153

DESCRIPTION Basis of Design / Manuf Quantity Functional Area Room #

24" iMac, M2 chip, 32 GB, 1TB + keyboard & mouse Mac 1 Lab ISO 147

Focal Shape 65 - Compact Powered Monitor, Single 

Speaker Focal 2 Lab ISO 147

Cardioid Dynamic Vocal Mic, SM7b, with desk arm Shure 1 Lab ISO 147

Power Conditioner, compact, non-rack mounted Furman 1 Lab ISO 147

X2P audio amplifier Focusrite 2 Lab ISO 147

DESCRIPTION Basis of Design / Manuf Quantity Functional Area Room #

Mac Studio MI Ultra, 32" 4K IPS monitor Apple 1 Production Office 149

Focal Shape 65 - Compact Powered Monitor, Single 

Speaker Focal 2 Production Office 149

Powered Studio Subwoofer 18S Dynaudio 1 Production Office 149

Red 8 Line Thunderbolt 3 Audio Interface, 58 in/64 

out Focusrite 1 Production Office 149
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2.9 STUDIO A 
 
2.9.1     Studio A Overview: 
  

This is our flagship studio. In this studio, 3rd and 4th year undergraduate students and graduate 
students will be trained in modern studio operations, techniques, and music production. Hands-on 
courses and special studio ensembles will occur daily. Music ensemble performances, recording 
sessions, and classes will occur daily in this studio. This area must be fully equipped to record 
chamber orchestra, large hybrid ensembles, choir, jazz bands, and modern popular ensembles. 
In addition to educational use, this area will also be used for special event studio concerts, master 
classes, and multimedia collaborations and events. 
 

2.9.2     Control Room 165 

 
This room is designed to be a professional level studio control and education room. It has been 
designed suit our pedagogical goals and meet industry standards, norms, and expectations.  
 

 
 
The *5088 Console Configuration consists of the following: 
 

 
 
2.9.3     166 – Main Studio 
 

Equipped for a variety of recording situation, up to, but not limited, chamber orchestra.   

 

DESCRIPTION Basis of Design / Manuf Quantity Functional Area Room #

Rupert Neve Designs 5088 Console, Custom Build

64 Channel 5088 w/Producer Desk *details below Rupert Neve Designs 1 Studio A 165

Allowance, NTE - Console Upgrade Package Rupert Neve Designs 1 Studio A 165

SCM200 Large Format Powered 3 Way Monitor + 

matching subwoofers ATC 1 Studio A 165
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2.9.4     166D – ISO Booth (Drum) 
 

 
 
 

2.9.5     166B – ISO BOTH (VOICE) 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

DESCRIPTION Basis of Design / Manuf Quantity Functional Area Room #

Yamaha C6X 7' Concert Grand Piano Yamaha 1 Studio A 166

Fender Rumble 100 1x12" 100-watt Bass Combo 

Amp Fender 2 Studio A 166

Fender Champion 100 2x12" 100-watt Combo Amp Fender 2 Studio A 166

GRAMMA v2 Isolation Riser - Single (platform) Auralex 4 Studio A 166

JDX 48, Active class-A reactive speaker emulation 

direct box Radial Engineering  1 Studio A 166

ST2 Pro Optimizer, 4ea - digital & analog, input & 

output, 4 processing channels, 2 BNC connectors for 

in/out world clock, with Bundle Optimizer 

Runtime4 + Optimizer Toolbox4 Trinnov 1 Studio A 166

3D Measurement Probe, Microphone Trinnov 1 Studio A 166

Allowance (NTE) - Movable acoustic isolation 

panels Gik Acoustics 1 Studio A 166

8-channel Microphone Preamplifier, M-801 Grace Design 1 Studio A 166

Limiting Amplifier, 1176 LN Universal Audio 2 Studio A 166

Leveling Amplifier, LA-2A Universal Audio 1 Studio A 166

Opto Tube Compressor (mono),  CL 1B Tube Tech 1 Studio A 166

Two-band EQ, EQP-1A Program Equalizer Pultec 1 Studio A 166

Stereo Tube EQ, Manley Massive Passive Manley 1 Studio A 166

Classic Tube Recording Channel, LA-610 Mk II Universal Audio 1 Studio A 166

VHD 500 Series Mic Pre SSL (solid state logic) 2 Studio A 166

Discrete Mic / Line Pre, 512C API Audio 2 Studio A 166

Three-Band Equalizer, 550A API Audio 2 Studio A 166

500 Series microphone preamp, TG2-500 Chandler Limited 1 Studio A 166

 SSL Stereo Bus Compressor Module for 500 Series SSL (solid state logic) 1 Studio A 166

Analog processing tool, Fusion SSL (solid state logic) 1 Studio A 166

Parametric Equalizer, MEA-2 Mastering Equalizer Maselec 1 Studio A 166

Mastering Equalizer, 6-band EQ4M Dual Channel 

Mastering EQ Magg 1 Studio A 166

UnderTone Audio UnFairchild 670M II UnderTone 1 Studio A 166

Allowance (NTE) - Addt'l Outboard Eqs, 

Compressors, Mics, Monitoring, etc. 1 Studio A 166

DESCRIPTION Basis of Design / Manuf Quantity Functional Area Room #

4 Piece Performance Drum Set DW 1 Studio A 166D

ClearSonic A2466x7 7-Section Drum Isolation Shield Clear Sonic 1 Studio A 166D

X2P audio amplifier Focusrite 1 Studio A 166D

DESCRIPTION Basis of Design / Manuf Quantity Functional Area Room #

X2P audio amplifier Focusrite 1 Studio A 166B
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2.9.6     166C – ISO BOOTH 
 

 
 
 

2.10     STUDIO B  
 
2.10.1   Studio B Overview 
 

Studio Bis our smaller, modern studio designed for  smaller recording demonstrations and 
advanced surround sound recording topics.  

 
2.10.2    Control 163  
 

 
 
2.10.3   Project Studio 161 
 

 
 

2.10.4   AV Network 159 Overview 
 
This is the SRT facility dedicated equipment room. Existing RedNet and Dante remote computer 
systems will be located here.  
 

2.10.5   Room 158 – De-Casing/green Room 
 
This room is for musician case and instrument storage during sessions. It will also serve as a 
green room/staging area for artist and guest who are waiting to enter the recording sessions.  

 
2.11    MISCELLANEOUS 

 
2.11.1   Facility Wide Allowances 

 
The following allowances have already been set as a not to exceed amount (NTE) in the cost 
proposal template. 
 

DESCRIPTION Basis of Design / Manuf Quantity Functional Area Room #

X2P audio amplifier Focusrite 1 Studio A 166C

DESCRIPTION Basis of Design / Manuf Quantity Functional Area Room #

Focal Shape 65 - Compact Powered Monitor, Single 

Speaker Focal 2 Studio B 163

Allowance (NTE) Custom Build, Apple Mac Pro Rack Mac 1 Studio B 163

MiniMain 12 - Pair / 4-Way Active Monitors Barefoot Sound 1 Studio B 163

MiniMain 12 Stands - Pair / Sound anchor stand for 

MM12 Barefoot Sound 1 Studio B 163

R10 Ten Space 500 Series Rack Rupert Neve Designs 2 Studio B 163

MicroMain 27 Gen 2 Pair, 3-way 

nearfield/main/mastering monitor pair Barefoot Sound 1 Studio B 163

DESCRIPTION Basis of Design / Manuf Quantity Functional Area Room #

Allowance (NTE) - Movable acoustic isolation 

panels Gik Acoustics 1 Studio B 161

Stereo Tube EQ, Manley Massive Passive Manley 1 Studio B 161



Stephen F. Austin State University RFP #SOUND RECORDING TECHNOLOGY STUDIO-23 

Page 11 of 20 

 

 
 
2.11.2   Services 
 

 
 

2.12    OTHER SPECIFICATIONS/WARRANTY 
 

●   All electrical items must meet all applicable OSHA standards and regulations, and  bear  
   the appropriate listing from a nationally recognized testing laboratory (NRTL). 
  

 ●   Manufacturer's standard warranty shall apply unless otherwise stated in the RFP.  
 

2.13    INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 

  Contractor shall be responsible for and shall protect the University from loss of any funds 
collected while the funds are in the custody of the Contractor.  Contractor shall promptly transmit 
to the University all funds collected regardless of any such loss.  Contractor shall maintain in 
force for the period of this contract, and following its termination, for so long as the Contractor is 
engaged in collecting the University’s accounts, a blanket performance bond in the amount of 
$100,000 payable to the University to protect the University against any loss or failure of 
Contractor or any of its officers, employees or agents to transmit to the University for any reason 
monies collected as required by the contract.  The bond shall be in a form and issued by a surety 
satisfactory to the University and shall require at least sixty (60) workings days’ advance written 
notice of cancellation to the University.  These limits are minimum limits and Contactor shall 
increase the amount of the bond upon request of the University.  

             In addition to the above, Contractor, consistent with its status as an independent contractor, will 
carry the following insurance coverages in the form, with the companies and in the amounts 
(unless otherwise specified) as the University may require.        

  Workers’ Compensation Insurance with statutory limits, and Employer’s Liability Insurance with 
limits of not less than $1,000,000.  

                  Each Accident     $1,000,000  
   Disease Each Employee    $1,000,000 
   Disease Policy Limit     $1,000,000 
  
 Commercial General Liability Insurance with limits of not less than: 
   General Aggregate     $2,000,000 
   Products & Completed Operations Aggregate $2,000,000 
   Personal & Advertising Injury    $1,000,000 
   Each Occurrence     $1,000,000 
   Fire Damage (any one fire)    $     50,000 

DESCRIPTION Basis of Design / Manuf Quantity Functional Area Room #

Allowance (NTE) - Monitoring headphones, tracking 

headphones and Focusrite AM2, Dante amplifiers, Focusrite, Sony 1 All All

Allowance (NTE) - Microphone Stands 1 All All

Allowance (NTE) - Microphones, Chamber 

Orchestra, Instruments DPA, MicTech, Sennheiser, AKG 1 All All

Allowance, NTE - Microphones, large diaphragm for 

solo and ambient, to inlcude U67, AKG C414 Neumann + others 1 All All

DESCRIPTION Basis of Design / Manuf Quantity Functional Area Room #

Allowance, NTE - Travel n/a 1 Services Services

Allowance, NTE - Additional acoustical materials n/a 1 As Needed As Needed

Allowance, NTE - Freight n/a 1 Services Services

Allowance, NTE - Complete patchbay system, entire 

facility n/a 1 Services Services
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   Medical Expenses (any one person)  $     10,000 
 
  Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance covering all owned, non-owned or hired automobiles, 

with coverage for at least $1,000,000 Combined Single Limit Bodily Injury and Property Damage.  
 
   Policies must include a waiver of rights and subrogation and other rights in favor of University. 

Further, University reserves the right to require Contractor to maintain additional or 
different insurance coverage that will adequately compensate University for any damages 
resulting from the negligence; recklessness; or the intentional acts of the Contractor or 
its agents.   

  
2.14       OTHER GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
2.14.1   Referenced room numbers are intended to match the construction drawings, actual room  signage 

 numbers will vary. Accommodations should be made on site (i.e. sticky notes, painters’ tape, etc.) 

 to protect from confusion. Coordinate with project management team prior to cabling, 

 programming, or labeling of equipment to ensure accuracy. 

   
2.14.2  Substitutions are not preferred, but are allowed, given equivalent specifications and compatibility 

 requirements. Where substitutions are suggested, full spec sheets shall be provided, along with a 

 side by side price comparison in the cost proposal. 

2.14.3  Due to known equipment shortages, long lead times, and the desire to preserve compatibility, a 

 final equipment package will be presented to the department for approval prior to order 

 authorization. 

  
2.15     REFERENCE PLANS AND CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS 

  SFA FINE ARTS – SRT CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

 

https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/mslivesfasu-my.sharepoint.com/:f:/g/personal/cookseyjessi_sfasu_edu/Ej2ZMEiSbBlJgtMK4yW4FgIBALGaM5gMBqB171rarIsEDg?e=q9GAEr__;!!Cwx1DRob!BIrYCp9ys7WOjrhb0GdfJY_zF9IfxV_FGCiQ2BQ_P4uTfZ8eb_qN-nmmEZA0cfg1jipyzuDkAjEnmsTxuONDj8eqiQ$
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SECTION 3 
INSTRUCTIONS TO RESPONDENTS 

 
3.1 CONTACT INFORMATION  
 
3.1.1 All questions regarding the RFP, or response must be forwarded to the Procurement and Business 

Services office: 
  Kim Jones 
  P.O. Box 13030, SFA Station 
  Nacogdoches, TX 75962 
  Phone: 936.468.6551 
  Fax: 936.468.4282 
  Email:  joneskk2@sfasu.edu  
 
3.2 RECOMMENDED ZOOM MEETING/SITE VISIT 
 
 A recommended Zoom meeting will be scheduled for October 4, 2022 at 11:30am Central Time.  

All questions will be required to be submitted via email to bids@sfasu.edu  no later than October 
6, 2022 at 5:00pm in order to be answered and published via an addendum on October 10, 2022 
by 5:00 pm. Please call the Procurement and Business Office main line at 936.468.2206 to be 
scheduled to be included in this Zoom Meeting.  Please make sure you do this prior to October 4, 
2022.  The Meeting ID and passcode will be given to you at the time you call.  Please be sure to 
provide company name, contact name, email and phone number at the time that you call.   

 
3.2.1     Any interested vendor may choose to perform a site visit ONLY between October 4th – 7th, 2022, 

however due to the expedited process, it is not required.  To coordinate and schedule a site visit 
please reach out to Jessica DeWitt, jdewitt@projectcontrol.com, or call 936.468.1993. 

 
3.3 SUBMITTAL DEADLINE AND LOCATION 
 
3.3.1 All proposals must be received by SFA no later than 5:00pm, Friday, October 21, 2022. 
 
3.3.2 Proposals are to be submitted to: 
 

 HAND DELIVER AND/OR 
MAIL PROPOSAL TO: EXPRESS MAIL TO: 

 
Stephen F. Austin State University Stephen F. Austin State University 

Procurement and Business Services Procurement and Business Services 
P.O. Box 13030, SFA Station                   2102 Alumni Drive, Austin Bldg., Room 131 
Nacogdoches, TX  75962-3030 Nacogdoches, TX  75962 

 
3.3.3 All U.S. Mail addressed to any component of SFA is delivered to a central mail room and 

redistributed by SFA personnel to the addressee’s on-campus post office box.  Consequently, there 
is a possibility of delay between receipt of mail at the central mail room and receipt in the 
Procurement and Business Services Department.  Proposals must be in the office of the 
Procurement and Business Services Department by the time set for RFP closing in order to be 
considered, and receipt by SFA at the central mail room will not be deemed sufficient.  The 
university shall not be responsible for responses received after the due date and time.  Late 
responses will not be considered under any circumstances.  Properly identified late responses will 
be returned to the respondent unopened. 

 
3.3.4 Proposals will be publicly opened Monday, October 24, 2022 at 8:30am in the office of Procurement 

and Business Services, 2102 Alumni Drive, Austin Building, Room 131.  Only the names of the 
Respondents will be read aloud. 

mailto:joneskk2@sfasu.edu
mailto:bids@sfasu.edu
mailto:jdewitt@projectcontrol.com
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3.3.5 Proposals received after the time for closing will be returned to Respondent unopened regardless 

of the circumstance.  It is the responsibility of the Respondent to get the proposals delivered in a 
timely manner, regardless of delivery method or circumstances. 

 
3.3.6 Faxed or electronically mailed proposals will not be accepted.  
 
3.3.7 Proposals may be withdrawn at any time prior to the time and date set for proposal closing. 
 
3.3.8 Stephen F. Austin State University reserves the right to accept or reject any or all proposals and to 

waive irregularities or technicalities provided such waiver does not substantially change the offer 
or provide a competitive advantage to any Respondent in the judgment of Stephen F. Austin State 
University.  

 
3.4 SUBMITTAL INSTRUCTIONS 
 
3.4.1 All proposals must be submitted in the format prescribed in Section 3.7.  
 
3.4.2 Respondent shall submit one (1) complete electronic copy of the Proposal on electronic  

media (e.g., USB Drive) in a Microsoft Office (Word, Excel, Project and PowerPoint files) version 

2003 or later format, or searchable Adobe .PDF files. Respondents shall divide the electronic copy 

into THREE (3) separate electronic files, one of which shall contain Respondent’s Qualifications in 

pdf format, additional file shall contain Exhibits A – D and F in pdf format and Exhibit C in excel 

format. 

 

3.4.3 All proposals must be complete and convey all of the information requested to be considered 
responsive.  If the proposal fails to conform to the essential requirements of the RFP, SFA alone 
will determine whether the variance is significant enough to consider the proposal susceptible to 
being made acceptable and therefore a candidate for further consideration, or not susceptible to 
being made acceptable and therefore not considered for award. 

 
3.4.4 Each respondent, by submitting a proposal, represents that the respondent has read and 

completely understands the request for proposal documents and agrees to abide by the terms of 
this RFP and any resulting agreement.  Failure of the selected contractor to fulfill the provisions of 
this request for proposal shall in no way relieve the obligation of the Contractor to furnish all services 
necessary to carry out the provisions of the agreement.   

 
3.4.5 Proposals shall be signed by a legally authorized representative of the Respondent.   Unsigned 

proposals (Exhibit A) will be rejected as a material failure. 
 
 
3.5 ACCEPTANCE AND FORMATION OF AGREEMENT 
 

3.5.1 No recommendation for award will be made until Stephen F. Austin State University is fully satisfied 

that the Respondent is professionally competent and properly equipped to render the specified 

service. 

 

3.5.2 The University reserves the right to negotiate further with any respondent that submits a proposal, 

once proposals have been opened.  SFA may award a contract(s) based on initial proposals 

received without any discussion of such proposals.  Therefore, each proposal should be submitted 

on the most favorable and complete price and terms possible.   

 

3.5.3 The University reserves the right to enter into an agreement not based only on the cost to the 

University, but which, in the sole opinion of SFA, is deemed to represent the best value to SFA. 
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The university shall be the sole judge of determining which proposal represents the best value to 

the University. 

3.5.4 By submitting a response, the Respondent agrees to accept an agreement including the scope of 

work and specifications herein and attached to this Request for Proposal. 

 

3.6 EVALUATION CRITERIA 
 
3.6.1 Initial evaluation will be based on a comprehensive review and analysis based on a weighted value 

of averaged evaluation scores and negotiation of the proposal that best meets the needs of the 
university.  Submission of a proposal represents concurrence with this method of evaluation and 
award.  Furthermore, Respondents will not, under any circumstances, dispute any award made 
using this method. 

 
3.6.2 Initial evaluation of the proposals will be performed by an evaluation committee representing 

Stephen F. Austin State University.  Proposals will be evaluated using the following criteria, which 
are listed below in no particular order.   

 
3.6.3 Evaluation Criteria 
 

a. 25% -  Respondent’s qualifications and experience on relevant projects, identification of 

 key project team members, including references; 

 

b. 30% - Quality of equipment offered; additional explanation or details to support cost 

 proposal, where needed, include full spec sheets for substitutions 

 

d. 20% -   Warranties long term customer service and maintenance plan, and include standard 

 training and demonstration processes; 

  

e. 25% - Reasonableness of Financial Proposal for equipment costs; detailed financial 

 proposal in Exhibit C excel format utilizing template provided; 

 
3.7 PROPOSAL FORMAT 
 
3.7.1 Proposals shall be prepared in a straightforward and concise manner, identifying clearly and 

concisely any deviations, enhancements and other differences that exist between the RFP and the 
respondent’s proposed services.  Emphasis should be placed on responsiveness to the RFP 
requirements, completeness and clarity of content and conformance to the RFP instructions.  
Respondents shall organize their proposal in a point-by-point format according to Section 
3.7.2.  Failure to follow point-by-point presentation could be grounds for disqualification. 

 
3.7.2 Proposal shall include the following information and be submitted in the following order: 
 
 a. Required Submittal – failure to provide any of the following documents may result in 

disqualification of the proposal from further consideration 
  i. Exhibit A – Signed Execution Of Offer 
  ii. Exhibit B – Acknowledgement of Addenda, if any 
  iii. Exhibit C – Financial Proposal including excel worksheet in excel format 
  iv. Exhibit D – Non-Collusion Affidavit 
  v. Exhibit E – Qualifications, Experience and References 
  vi. Exhibit F – Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) Subcontracting Plan 
    

Stephen F. Austin State University reserves the right to check references prior to award. Any negative responses 
received may be grounds for disqualification of the bid. SFA reserves the right to enter into an agreement, in the sole 

opinion of SFA, is deemed to represent the best value to SFA. 
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EXHIBIT A 
EXECUTION OF OFFER 

 
In compliance with this RFP, and subject to all the conditions herein, the undersigned offers and agrees to furnish any or all 
commodities or services and to comply with all terms, conditions and requirements set forth in the RFQ documents and 
contained herein. 
 
By signature hereon, Respondent affirms that he/she has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at any time hereafter any 
economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip, favor, or service to a public servant in 
connection with the submitted Qualifications.  Failure to sign the response, or signing it with a false statement, shall void the 
submitted response or any resulting contracts, and the Respondent may be removed from all bid lists.  
 
By the signature hereon affixed, the Respondent hereby certifies that neither the Respondent nor the firm, corporation, 
partnership, or institution represented by the Respondent or anyone acting for such firm, corporation, or institution has violated 
the antitrust laws of this State or the Federal antitrust laws nor communicated directly or indirectly the response made to any 
competitor or any other person engaged in such line of business.   
 
By signature hereon, Respondent certifies that if a Texas address is shown as the address of the Respondent, Respondent 
qualifies as a Texas Resident Bidder as defined in Rule 34 TAC 20.38. 
 
Certifications: 
Representations and Warranties by Respondent 
If Respondent is a corporation, limited liability company, or any other entity organized and existing under state law, Respondent 
warrants, represents, covenants, and agrees that it is duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the 
state of its incorporation or organization and is duly authorized and in good standing to conduct business in the State of Texas, 
that it has all necessary power and has received all necessary approvals to execute and deliver the Agreement, and the 
individual signing the Agreement on behalf of the Respondent has been duly authorized to act for and bind Respondent. 
 
Tax Certification 
If Respondent is a taxable entity as defined by Chapter 171, Texas Tax Code (“Chapter 171”), then Respondent certifies that it 
is not currently delinquent in the payment of any taxes due under Chapter 171, or that Respondent is exempt from the payment 
of those taxes, or that Respondent is an out-of-state taxable entity that is not subject to those taxes, whichever is applicable. 
 
Eligibility to Receive Payment 
In accordance with Section 231.006 of the Texas Family Code and Sections 2155.004 and 2155.006 of the Texas Government 
Code, Respondent certifies that it is not ineligible to receive the Agreement or any payments under the Agreement and 
acknowledges that University may terminate the Agreement and/or withhold any payment and/or reimbursement if this 
certification is inaccurate. 
 
Payment of Debt or Delinquency to the State 
Pursuant to Sections 2107.008 and 2252.903, Texas Government Code, Respondent agrees that any payments owing to 
Respondent under the Agreement may be applied directly toward any debt or delinquency that Respondent owes the State of 
Texas or any agency of the State of Texas regardless of when it arises, until such debt or delinquency is paid in full. 
 
The person signing the Response should show title or authority to bind his/her firm in contract.  

Federal Employer’s Identification Number:       

Sole Owner should also enter Social Security No.:      

Respondent/Company:         

Signature (INK):          

Name (Typed/Printed):         

Title:           

Street:           

City/State/Zip:          

Telephone No/Fax No:         

Email.:           

THIS SHEET MUST BE COMPLETED, SIGNED, AND RETURNED WITH RESPONDENT'S RESPONSE.  
FAILURE TO SIGN AND RETURN THIS SHEET MAY RESULT IN THE REJECTION OF YOUR RESPONSE 
 

 



Stephen F. Austin State University RFP #SOUND RECORDING TECHNOLOGY STUDIO-23 

EXHIBIT B  

Page 17 of 20 

 

EXHIBIT B 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ADDENDA 

 
 

Receipt is hereby acknowledged of the following addenda to this RFP.  
 
 
Addenda No.    Dated     
 
Addenda No.    Dated     
 
Addenda No.    Dated     
 
Addenda No.    Dated     

 

 
Respondent/Company:         

 

Refer to the SFA Procurement and Business Services Department website to confirm all 
addenda issued:   https://www.sfasu.edu/procurement-business-services/do-business/bids-rfps  

https://www.sfasu.edu/procurement-business-services/do-business/bids-rfps
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EXHIBIT C 
FINANCIAL PROPOSAL 

 
Having carefully reviewed the specifications and related documents affecting the proposal to equip and 
install a sound recording technology studio in the newly renovated Fine Arts Building located on the campus 
of  Stephen F. Austin State University, the undersigned submits the following Financial Proposal in 
accordance with the Request for Proposal documents: 
 
Respondent Name:    

Authorized Signature:    
 

 
 

Please  sign this document on signature line above and complete “Exhibit C Financial Proposal 
Detail” attachment to this proposal in its entirety.  Note the columns titled *Line Total” and 

“Difference” are formulas.  Please do not override. 
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EXHIBIT D 
 NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT 

   
  
The undersigned, duly authorized to represent the persons, firms and corporations joining and 

participating in the submission of the foregoing Proposal (such persons, firms and corporations 

hereinafter being referred to as the “Respondents”), being duly sworn, on his or her oath, states that to 

the best of his or her belief and knowledge no person, firm or corporation, nor any person duly 

representing the same joining and participating in the submission of the foregoing Proposal, has directly 

or indirectly entered into any agreement or arrangement with any other Respondent, or with any official 

of SFA or any employee thereof, or any person, firm or corporation under contract with  
SFA whereby the Respondent, in order to  induce acceptance of the foregoing Proposal by said SFA, 

has paid or is to pay to any other Respondent or to any of the aforementioned persons anything of value 

whatsoever, and that the Respondent has not, directly or indirectly entered into any arrangement or 

agreement with any other Respondent or Respondent which tends to or does lessen or destroy free 

competition in the letting of the contract sought for by the foregoing Proposal.    

  
The Respondent hereby certifies that neither it, its officers, partners, owners, providers, representatives, 

employees and/or parties in interest, including the affiant, have in any way colluded, conspired, connived 

or agreed, directly or indirectly, with any other Respondent, potential  
Respondent, firm or person, in connection with this solicitation, to submit a collusive or sham bid, to 

refrain from bidding, to manipulate or ascertain the price(s) of other Respondents or potential 

Respondents, or to obtain through any unlawful act an advantage over other Respondents or SFA.   

  
The prices submitted herein have been arrived at in an entirely independent and lawful manner by the 

Respondent without consultation with other Respondents or potential Respondents or foreknowledge of 

the prices to be submitted in response to this solicitation by other Respondents or potential 

Respondents on the part of the Respondent, its officers, partners, owners, providers, representatives, 

employees or parties in interest including the affiant.   

  
 CONFLICT OF INTEREST  
  
The undersigned Respondent and each person signing on behalf of the Respondent certifies, and in the 

case of a sole proprietorship, partnership or corporation, each party thereto certifies as to its own 

organization, under penalty of perjury, that to the best of their knowledge and belief, no member of SFA, 

nor any member of its Board of Regents, employee, or person whose salary is payable in whole or in 

part by SFA, has a direct or indirect financial interest in the award of the Proposal, or in the services to 

which this Proposal relates, or any of the profits, real or potential, thereof, except as noted otherwise 

herein.        

  

  
Signature _____________________________________________  
  
Company name ________________________________________  
  
Date______________________  
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EXHIBIT E 
QUALIFICATIONS, EXPERIENCE AND REFERENCES 

(Please note:  Qualifications shall be a MAXIMUM OF TWENTY-FIVE (25) 
PAGES.  The cover, table of contents, divider sheets, HUB Subcontracting Plan, 

specification sheets and Execution of Offer do NOT count as printed pages.) 

1. Provide a history of your organization including how long your firm has been in business

under its present name and any structural changes contemplated in the next year.

2. Provide a brief overview of your firm and its demonstrated expertise and experience related

to requested services.

3. Provide a brief resume of the firm’s personnel that will be working on the implementation and

maintenance phases.

4. Provide a description of experience working with college/universities and/or other entities on

projects of similar size (or larger) and scope.

5. Submit documentation to demonstrate that your firm is financially stable and able to provide

the requested services to the university.

6. Provide a minimum of three (3) client references for which Respondent currently   provides
similar services, including but not limited to higher education clients. The services provided
should be similar to services requested in this RFP. At a minimum, include entity name,
contact name, address, telephone number and email address, description of services
provided, and time period of service. Particular weight will be given to similar projects in
higher education.

7. Please provide your firms standard form of agreement, if any, including all terms and

conditions.

8. Provide a narrative description of product warranties and long term customer service plan.

9. Provide a statement that your firm can meet the required project timeframe.

10. Provide detailed description of maintenance plan costs.ie annual subscription fees.

11. Provide training and implementation plan for this turn-key project including post

implementation.

12. Please note exceptions, if any, to SFA’s standard contract addendum as referenced in

Exhibit G.

13. Please provide a statement that you understand that a current Voluntary Product

Accessibility Template (VPAT) for all applicable software and hardware must be provided for

this turnkey project.



 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT F 
 

HUB SUBCONTRACTING PLAN 
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HUB Subcontracting Plan (HSP)
QUICK CHECKLIST

While this HSP Quick Checklist is being provided to merely assist you in readily identifying the sections of the HSP form that you will need to 
complete, it is very important that you adhere to the instructions in the HSP form and instructions provided by the contracting agency. 

If you will be awarding all of the subcontracting work you have to offer under the contract to only Texas certified HUB vendors, complete:  

     
  

  
 

 

Section 1 - Respondent and Requisition Information
Section 2 a. - Yes, I will be subcontracting portions of the contract.
Section 2 b. - List all the portions of work you will subcontract, and indicate the percentage of the contract you expect to award to Texas certified HUB vendors. 
Section 2 c. - Yes
Section 4 - Affirmation
GFE Method A (Attachment A) - Complete an Attachment A for each of the subcontracting opportunities you listed in Section 2 b.

If you will be subcontracting any portion of the contract to Texas certified HUB vendors and Non-HUB vendors, and the aggregate 
percentage of all the subcontracting work you will be awarding to the Texas certified HUB vendors with which you do not have a 
continuous contract* in place for more than five (5) years meets or exceeds the HUB Goal the contracting agency identified in the 
“Agency Special Instructions/Additional Requirements”, complete: 

Section 1 - Respondent and Requisition Information
Section 2 a. - Yes, I will be subcontracting portions of the contract.
Section 2 b. - List all the portions of work you will subcontract, and indicate the percentage of the contract you expect to award to Texas certified HUB vendors 
and Non-HUB vendors.
Section 2 c. - No
Section 2 d. - Yes
Section 4 - Affirmation
GFE Method A (Attachment A) - Complete an Attachment A for each of the subcontracting opportunities you listed in Section 2 b.

If you will be subcontracting any portion of the contract to Texas certified HUB vendors and Non-HUB vendors or only to Non-HUB 
vendors, and the aggregate percentage of all the subcontracting work you will be awarding to the Texas certified HUB vendors with which 
you do not have a continuous contract* in place for more than five (5) years does not meet or exceed the HUB Goal the contracting agency 
identified in the “Agency Special Instructions/Additional Requirements”, complete: 

   
 

           
   

 

  

Section 1 - Respondent and Requisition Information
Section 2 a. - Yes, I will be subcontracting portions of the contract.
Section 2 b. - List all the portions of work you will subcontract, and indicate the percentage of the contract you expect to award to Texas certified HUB vendors 
and Non-HUB vendors.
Section 2 c. - No
Section 2 d. - No
Section 4 - Affirmation
GFE Method B (Attachment B) - Complete an Attachment B for each of the subcontracting opportunities you listed in Section 2 b.

If you will not be subcontracting any portion of the contract and will be fulfilling the entire contract with your own resources 
(i.e., employees, supplies, materials and/or equipment), complete:   

   
 

Section 1 - Respondent and Requisition Information 
Section 2 a. - No, I will not be subcontracting any portion of the contract, and I will be fulfilling the entire contract with my own resources.
Section 3 - Self Performing Justification 
Section 4 - Affirmation

*Continuous Contract:  Any existing written agreement (including any renewals that are exercised) between a prime contractor and a HUB vendor,
where the HUB vendor provides the prime contractor with goods or service, to include under the same contract for a specified period of time. The
frequency the HUB vendor is utilized or paid during the term of the contract is not relevant to whether the contract is considered continuous. Two or
more contracts that run concurrently or overlap one another for different periods of time are considered by CPA to be individual contracts rather than
renewals or extensions to the original contract. In such situations the prime contractor and HUB vendor are entering (have entered) into “new”
contracts.
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HUB Subcontracting Plan (HSP) 
        

        

               

In accordance with Texas Gov’t Code §2161.252, the contracting agency has determined that subcontracting opportunities are probable under this contract. Therefore, 
all respondents, including State of Texas certified Historically Underutilized Businesses (HUBs) must complete and submit this State of Texas HUB Subcontracting 
Plan (HSP) with their response to the bid requisition (solicitation). 

NOTE: Responses that do not include a completed HSP shall be rejected pursuant to Texas Gov’t Code §2161.252(b). 

The HUB Program promotes equal business opportunities for economically disadvantaged persons to contract with the State of Texas in accordance with the 
goals specified in the 2009 State of Texas Disparity Study.  The statewide HUB goals defined in 34 Texas Administrative Code (TAC) §20.284 are: 

• 11.2 percent for heavy construction other than building  contracts,

• 21.1 percent for all building construction, including general contractors and operative builders’ contracts,

• 32.9 percent for all special trade construction contracts,

• 23.7 percent for professional services contracts,

• 26.0 percent for all other services contracts,  and

• 21.1 percent for commodities contracts.

- - Agency Special Instructions/Additional Requirements - -

          
               

       
             

           

Respondent (Company) Name:

Point of Contact:
State of Texas VID #: 

Bid Open Date:

 SECTION 1: RESPONDENT AND REQUISITION INFORMATION

(mm/dd/yyyy) 

- Yes - No

1 

a.

b.

c.

In accordance with 34 TAC §20.285(d)(1)(D)(iii), a respondent (prime contractor) may demonstrate good faith effort to utilize Texas certified  HUBs  for  
its subcontracting opportunities if the total value of the respondent’s subcontracts with Texas certified HUBs meets or exceeds the statewide HUB goal or the 
agency specific HUB goal, whichever is higher. When a respondent uses this method to demonstrate good faith effort, the respondent must identify the HUBs with 
which it will subcontract. If using existing contracts with Texas certified HUBs to satisfy this requirement, only the aggregate percentage of the contracts expected 
to be subcontracted to HUBs with which the respondent does not have a continuous contract* in place for more than five (5) years shall qualify for meeting the 
HUB goal. This limitation is designed to encourage vendor rotation as recommended by the 2009 Texas Disparity Study.

E-mail Address:

Is your company a State of Texas certified HUB?

Requisition #:

Phone #:

Fax #: 



 
 

 

  

 

            
       

-  

- Yes, I will be subcontracting portions of the contract. (If Yes, complete Item b of this SECTION and continue to Item c of this SECTION.)  

    
   
- Yes (If Yes, continue to SECTION 4 and complete an “HSP Good Faith Effort - Method A (Attachment A)” for each of the subcontracting opportunities you listed.) 
- No (If No, continue to Item d, of this SECTION.) 

       
      

- Yes (If Yes, continue to SECTION 4 and complete an “HSP Good Faith Effort - Method A (Attachment A)” for each of the subcontracting opportunities you listed.) 
- No (If No, continue to SECTION 4 and complete an “HSP Good Faith Effort - Method B (Attachment B)” for each of the subcontracting opportunities you listed.) 

 

 
 

      

              
          

            
 

   
    

 

 
Non-HUBs 

 
HUBs 

 
 

  
  

 
 

  
 

 

        

 %

 %

 %

 %

 %

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 % 

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

 %

 

 % 

 

 

 % 

 % 

 % 

 

 

 % 

 

 

 

 

 

%

%

%

%    

 

 

% 

% 

% 

% 

% 

% 

 

  %

  %

  %

 %

 

  %

  %

  %

  %

 

 

  %

 

 

   

 %

 %

 %

% 
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Enter your company’s name here: Requisition #: 

       SECTION 2: RESPONDENT's SUBCONTRACTING INTENTIONS

After dividing the contract work into reasonable lots or portions to the extent consistent with prudent industry practices, and taking into consideration the scope of work 
to be performed under the proposed contract, including all potential subcontracting opportunities, the respondent must determine what portions of work, including 
contracted staffing, goods and services will be subcontracted. Note: In accordance with 34 TAC §20.282, a “Subcontractor” means a person who contracts with 
a prime contractor to work, to supply commodities, or to contribute toward completing work for a governmental entity. 
a. Check the appropriate box (Yes or No) that identifies your subcontracting intentions:

b. List all the portions of work (subcontracting opportunities) you will subcontract. Also, based on the total value of the contract, identify the percentages of the contract
you expect to award to Texas certified HUBs, and the percentage of the contract you expect to award to vendors that are not a Texas certified HUB (i.e., Non-HUB).

Item # Subcontracting Opportunity Description Percentage of the contract 
expected to be subcontracted to 

HUBs with which you do not have 
a continuous contract* in place 

for more than five (5) years. 

Percentage of the contract 
expected to be subcontracted to 

HUBs with which you have a 
continuous contract* in place for 

more than five (5) years. 

Percentage of the contract 
expected to be subcontracted 

to non-HUBs. 

1 %

2

3

4

5

6  %

7

8

9

10

11  %

12

13

14

15

Aggregate percentages of the contract expected to be subcontracted: 

(Note: If you have more than fifteen subcontracting opportunities, a continuation sheet is available online at https://www.comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/vendor/hub/forms.php). 

c. Check the appropriate box (Yes or No) that indicates whether you will be using only Texas certified HUBs to perform all of the subcontracting opportunities
you listed in SECTION 2, Item b.

d. Check the appropriate box (Yes or No) that indicates whether the aggregate expected percentage of the contract you will subcontract with Texas certified HUBs 
with which you do not have a continuous contract* in place with for more than five (5) years, meets or exceeds the HUB goal the contracting agency
identified on page 1 in the “Agency Special Instructions/Additional Requirements.”

2

*Continuous Contract:  Any existing written agreement (including any renewals that are exercised) between a prime contractor and a HUB vendor,
where the HUB vendor provides the prime contractor with goods or service under the same contract for a specified period of time. The frequency
the HUB vendor is utilized or paid during the term of the contract is not relevant to whether the contract is considered continuous. Two or more
contracts that run concurrently or overlap one another for different periods of time are considered by CPA to be individual contracts rather than
renewals or extensions to the original contract. In such situations the prime contractor and HUB vendor are entering (have entered) into “new”
contracts.

- No, I will not be subcontracting any portion of the contract, and I will be fulfilling the entire contract with my own resources, including employees, goods and
  services. (If No, continue to SECTION 3 and SECTION 4.)
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Enter your company’s name here: Requisition #: 

   SECTION 2: RESPONDENT's SUBCONTRACTING INTENTIONS (CONTINUATION SHEET)   

This page can be used as a continuation sheet to the HSP Form’s page 2, Section 2, Item b. Continue listing the portions of work (subcontracting 
opportunities) you will subcontract. Also, based on the total value of the contract, identify the percentages of the contract you expect to award to Texas certified HUBs, 
and the percentage of the contract you expect to award to vendors that are not a Texas certified HUB (i.e., Non-HUB). 

Item # Subcontracting Opportunity Description 

HUBs Non-HUBs 

16  %  %  %

 %  %  %

 %  %  %

 %  %  %

 %  %  %

 %  %  %

 %  %  %

 %  %  %

 %  %  %

 %  %  %

 %  %  %

 %  %  %

 %  %  %

 %  %  %

 %  %  %

 %  %  %

 %  %  %

 %  %  %

 %  %  %

 %  %  %

 %  %  %

 %  %  %

 %  %  %

 %  %  %

 %  %  %

 %  %  %

 %  %  %

 %  %  %

% % % 

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

Aggregate percentages of the contract expected to be subcontracted: 

HSP – SECTION 2 
(Continuation Sheet) 

*Continuous Contract:  Any existing written agreement (including any renewals that are exercised) between a prime contractor and a HUB vendor,
where the HUB vendor provides the prime contractor with goods or service under the same contract for a specified period of time. The frequency the
HUB vendor is utilized or paid during the term of the contract is not relevant to whether the contract is considered continuous. Two or more contracts
that run concurrently or overlap one another for different periods of time are considered by CPA to be individual contracts rather than renewals or
extensions to the original contract. In such situations the prime contractor and HUB vendor are entering (have entered) into “new” contracts.

Percentage of the contract 
expected to be subcontracted to 

HUBs with which you do not have 
a continuous contract* in place 

for more than five (5) years. 

Percentage of the contract 
expected to be subcontracted to 

HUBs with which you have a 
continuous contract* in place for 

more than five (5) years. 

Percentage of the contract 
expected to be subcontracted 

to non-HUBs. 
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Enter your company’s name here: Requisition #: 

SECTION 3: SELF PERFORMING JUSTIFICATION (If you responded “No” to SECTION 2, Item a, you must complete this SECTION and continue to SECTION 4.) If you 
responded “No” to SECTION 2, Item a, in the space provided below explain how your company will perform the entire contract with its own employees, supplies, 
materials and/or equipment.

SECTION 4:  AFFIRMATION 

As evidenced by my signature below, I affirm that I am an authorized representative of the respondent listed in SECTION 1, and that the information and 
supporting documentation submitted with the HSP is true and correct. Respondent understands and agrees that, if awarded any portion of the requisition: 

• The respondent will provide notice as soon as practical to all the subcontractors (HUBs and Non-HUBs) of their selection as a subcontractor for the awarded
contract. The notice must specify at a minimum the contracting agency’s name and its point of contact for the contract, the contract award number, the
subcontracting opportunity they (the subcontractor) will perform, the approximate dollar value of the subcontracting opportunity and the expected percentage of
the total contract that the subcontracting opportunity represents. A copy of the notice required by this section must also be provided to the contracting agency’s
point of contact for the contract no later than ten (10) working days after the contract is awarded.

• The respondent must submit monthly compliance reports (Prime Contractor Progress Assessment Report – PAR) to the contracting agency, verifying its
compliance with the HSP, including the use of and expenditures made to its subcontractors (HUBs and Non-HUBs). (The PAR is available at
https://www.comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/hub-forms/ProgressAssessmentReportForm.xls).

• The respondent must seek approval from the contracting agency prior to making any modifications to its HSP, including the hiring of additional or different
subcontractors and the termination of a subcontractor the respondent identified in its HSP. If the HSP is modified without the contracting agency’s prior approval,
respondent may be subject to any and all enforcement remedies available under the contract or otherwise available by law, up to and including debarment from all
state contracting.

• The respondent must, upon request, allow the contracting agency to perform on-site reviews of the company’s headquarters and/or work-site where services
are being performed and must provide documentation regarding staffing and other resources.

Printed Name Title Date 
(mm/dd/yyyy) 

 

Signature							

Reminder: 
If you responded “Yes” to SECTION 2, Items c or d, you must complete an “HSP Good Faith Effort - Method A (Attachment A)” for each of 
the subcontracting opportunities you listed in SECTION 2, Item b. 

If you responded “No” SECTION 2, Items c and d, you must complete an “HSP Good Faith Effort - Method B (Attachment B)” for each of 
the subcontracting opportunities you listed in SECTION 2, Item b. 

3 

http://www.window.state.tx.us/procurement/prog/hub/hub-forms/progressassessmentrpt.xls
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HSP Good Faith Effort - Method A (Attachment A) 

Enter your company’s name here: 
       

Requisition #: 
 

IMPORTANT: If you responded “Yes” to SECTION 2, Items c or d of the completed HSP form, you must submit a completed “HSP Good Faith Effort - 
Method A (Attachment A)” for each of the subcontracting opportunities you listed in SECTION 2, Item b of the completed HSP form. You may photo-copy this 
page or download the form at https://www.comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/hub-forms/hub-sbcont-plan-gfe-achm-a.pdf

SECTION A-1:    SUBCONTRACTING OPPORTUNITY

Enter the item number and description of the subcontracting opportunity you listed in SECTION 2, Item b, of the completed HSP form for which you are completing 
the attachment. 
Item Number: 

    
Description: 

   

Company Name Texas certified HUB 
Approximate

Dollar Amount
Expected 

Percentage of 
Contract 

- Yes - No $ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

% 

% 

% 

% 

% 

% 

% 

% 

% 

% 

% 

% 

% 

% 

% 

% 

% 

% 

% 

% 

% 

% 

% 

- Yes - No

- Yes - No

- Yes - No

- Yes - No

- Yes - No

- Yes - No

- Yes - No

- Yes - No

- Yes - No

- Yes - No

- Yes - No

- Yes - No

- Yes - No

- Yes - No

- Yes - No

- Yes - No

- Yes - No

- Yes - No

- Yes - No

- Yes - No

- Yes - No

- Yes - No

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

          
           

              
     

           
  

REMINDER: As specified in SECTION 4 of the completed HSP form, if you (respondent) are awarded any portion of the requisition, you are required to
provide notice as soon as practical to all the subcontractors (HUBs and Non-HUBs) of their selection as a subcontractor. The notice must specify at a minimum the 
contracting agency’s name and its point of contact for the contract, the contract award number, the subcontracting opportunity they (the subcontractor) will perform, the 
approximate dollar value of the subcontracting opportunity and the expected percentage of the total contract that the subcontracting opportunity represents. A copy of 
the notice required by this section must also be provided to the contracting agency’s point of contact for the contract no later than ten (10) working days after the 
contract is awarded.  

 Page 1 of 1  
(Attachment A) 

Texas VID or federal EIN 
Do not enter Social Security Numbers. 

If you do not know their VID / EIN, 
leave their VID / EIN  field blank.

SECTION A-2:   SUBCONTRACTOR SELECTION 

List the subcontractor(s) you selected to perform the subcontracting opportunity you listed above in SECTION A-1. Also identify whether they are a Texas certified 
HUB and their Texas Vendor Identification (VID) Number or federal Employer Identification Number (EIN), the approximate dollar value of the work to be 
subcontracted, and the expected percentage of work to be subcontracted. When searching for Texas certified HUBs and verifying their HUB status, ensure that you 
use the State of Texas’ Centralized Master Bidders List (CMBL) - Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) Directory Search located at  
http://mycpa.cpa.state.tx.us/tpasscmblsearch/index.jsp. HUB status code “A” signifies that the company is a Texas certified HUB.

http://mycpa.cpa.state.tx.us/tpasscmblsearch/index.jsp
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					Enter your company’s name here: 
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	Requisition #: 
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HSP Good Faith Effort - Method B (Attachment B) 

IMPORTANT: If you responded “No” to SECTION 2, Items c and d of the completed HSP form, you must submit a completed “HSP Good Faith Effort - 
Method B (Attachment B)” for each of the subcontracting opportunities you listed in SECTION 2, Item b of the completed HSP form. You may photo-copy this 
page or download the form at https://www.comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/hub-forms/hub-sbcont-plan-gfe-achm-b.pdf..

SECTION B-1: SUBCONTRACTING OPPORTUNITY 

Enter the item number and description of the subcontracting opportunity you listed in SECTION 2, Item b, of the completed HSP form for which you are 
completing the attachment. 

Item Number: Description: 

SECTION B-2: MENTOR PROTÉGÉ PROGRAM
If respondent is participating as a Mentor in a State of Texas Mentor Protégé Program, submitting its Protégé (Protégé must be a State of Texas certified HUB) as a 
subcontractor to perform the subcontracting opportunity listed in SECTION B-1, constitutes a good faith effort to subcontract with a Texas certified HUB towards that 
specific portion of work.
Check the appropriate box (Yes or No) that indicates whether you will be subcontracting the portion of work you listed in SECTION B-1 to your Protégé.

- Yes (If Yes, continue to SECTION B-4.)

- No / Not Applicable (If No or Not Applicable, continue to SECTION B-3 and SECTION B-4.)

SECTION B-3: NOTIFICATION OF SUBCONTRACTING OPPORTUNITY 

  

When completing this section you MUST comply with items a, b, c and d, thereby demonstrating your Good Faith Effort of having notified Texas certified HUBs and 
trade organizations or development centers about the subcontracting opportunity you listed in SECTION B-1. Your notice should include the scope of work, 
information regarding the location to review plans and specifications, bonding and insurance requirements, required qualifications, and identify a contact person. 
When sending notice of your subcontracting opportunity, you are encouraged to use the attached HUB Subcontracting Opportunity Notice form, which is also available 
online at https://www.comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/hub-forms/HUBSubcontractingOpportunityNotificationForm.pdf.
Retain supporting documentation (i.e., certified letter, fax, e-mail) demonstrating evidence of your good faith effort to notify the Texas certified HUBs and trade 
organizations or development centers. Also, be mindful that a working day is considered a normal business day of a state agency, not including weekends, federal or 
state holidays, or days the agency is declared closed by its executive officer. The initial day the subcontracting opportunity notice is sent/provided to the HUBs and to 
the trade organizations or development centers is considered to be “day zero” and does not count as one of the seven (7) working days.

     

Provide written notification of the subcontracting opportunity you listed in SECTION B-1, to three (3) or more Texas certified HUBs. Unless the contracting agency 
specified a different time period, you must allow the HUBs at least seven (7) working days to respond to the notice prior to you submitting your bid response to the 
contracting agency. When searching for Texas certified HUBs and verifying their HUB status, ensure that you use the State of Texas’ Centralized Master Bidders 
List (CMBL) - Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) Directory Search located at http://mycpa.cpa.state.tx.us/tpasscmblsearch/index.jsp. HUB status code “A” 
signifies that the company is a Texas certified HUB.
List the three (3) Texas certified HUBs you notified regarding the subcontracting opportunity you listed in SECTION B-1. Include the company’s Texas Vendor 
Identification (VID) Number, the date you sent notice to that company, and indicate whether it was responsive or non-responsive to your subcontracting 
opportunity notice.

Did the HUB Respond? 

 

Provide written notification of the subcontracting opportunity you listed in SECTION B-1 to two (2) or more trade organizations or development centers in Texas to 
assist in identifying potential HUBs by disseminating the subcontracting opportunity to their members/participants. Unless the contracting agency specified a 
different time period, you must provide your subcontracting opportunity notice to trade organizations or development centers at least seven (7) working days prior to 
submitting your bid response to the contracting agency. A list of trade organizations and development centers that have expressed an interest in receiving notices 
of subcontracting opportunities is available on the Statewide HUB Program’s webpage at https://www.comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/vendor/hub/resources.php.  

List two (2) trade organizations or development centers you notified regarding the subcontracting opportunity you listed in SECTION B-1. Include the date 
when you sent notice to it and indicate if it accepted or rejected your notice.

Trade Organizations or Development Centers Was the Notice Accepted? 

Page 1 of 2 
(Attachment B)

a.

b.

c.

d.

- Yes

- Yes

- Yes

- Yes

- Yes

- No

- No

- No

- No

- No

Texas VID
(Do not enter Social Security Numbers.) 

Date Notice Sent
(mm/dd/yyyy) 

Company Name 

Date Notice Sent
(mm/dd/yyyy) 

http://www.window.state.tx.us/procurement/prog/hub/mwb-links-1
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Enter your company’s name here: Requisition #: 

SECTION B-4:  SUBCONTRACTOR SELECTION
Enter the item number and description of the subcontracting opportunity you listed in SECTION 2, Item b, of the completed HSP form for which you are completing 
the attachment. 

Enter the item number and description of the subcontracting opportunity for which you are completing this Attachment B continuation page. 
Item Number:  Description:

List the subcontractor(s) you selected to perform the subcontracting opportunity you listed in SECTION B-1.  Also identify whether they are a Texas certified 
HUB and their Texas Vendor Identification (VID) Number or federal Emplioyer Identification Number (EIN), the approximate dollar value of the work to be 
subcontracted, and the expected percentage of work to be subcontracted. When searching for Texas certified HUBs and verifying their HUB status, ensure that 
you use the State of Texas’ Centralized Master Bidders List (CMBL) - Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) Directory Search located at
http://mycpa.cpa.state.tx.us/tpasscmblsearch/index.jsp. HUB status code “A” signifies that the company is a Texas certified HUB.

- Yes - No $ % 

- Yes - No $ % 

- Yes - No $ % 

- Yes - No $ % 

- Yes - No $ % 

- Yes - No $ % 

- Yes - No $ % 

- Yes - No $ %

- Yes - No $ % 

- Yes - No $ % 

If any of the subcontractors you have selected to perform the subcontracting opportunity you listed in SECTION B-1 is not a Texas certified HUB, provide written 
justification for your selection process (attach additional page if necessary):

REMINDER: As specified in SECTION 4 of the completed HSP form, if you (respondent) are awarded any portion of the requisition, you are required to provide 
notice as soon as practical to all the subcontractors (HUBs and Non-HUBs) of their selection as a subcontractor. The notice must specify at a minimum the 
contracting agency’s name and its point of contact for the contract, the contract award number, the subcontracting opportunity it (the subcontractor) will perform, the 
approximate dollar value of the subcontracting opportunity and the expected percentage of the total contract that the subcontracting opportunity represents. A copy of 
the notice required by this section must also be provided to the contracting agency’s point of contact for the contract no later than ten (10) working days after the 
contract is awarded. 

 Page 2 of 2  
 

(Attachment B) 

a.

b.

c.

Company Name 
Approximate

Dollar Amount
Expected 

Percentage of 
Contract 

Texas certified HUB 
Texas VID or federal EIN 

Do not enter Social Security Numbers. 
If you do not know their VID / EIN, 
leave their VID / EIN  field blank.
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HUB Subcontracting Opportunity Notification Form
      

    
 

  
  

 
 

   
 

       
    

In accordance with Texas Gov’t Code, Chapter 2161, each state agency that considers entering into a contract with an expected value of $100,000 or more shall, before the 
agency solicits bids, proposals, offers, or other applicable expressions of interest, determine whether subcontracting opportunities are probable under the contract. The state 
agency I have identified below in Section B has determined that subcontracting opportunities are probable under the requisition to which my company will be responding. 

34 Texas Administrative Code, §20.285 requires all respondents (prime contractors) bidding on the contract to provide notice of each of their subcontracting opportunities to at 
least three (3) Texas certified HUBs (who work within the respective industry applicable to the subcontracting opportunity), and allow the HUBs at least seven (7) working days 
to respond to the notice prior to the respondent submitting its bid response to the contracting agency. In addition, at least seven (7) working days prior to submitting its bid 
response to the contracting agency, the respondent must provide notice of each of its subcontracting opportunities to two (2) or more trade organizations or development centers 
(in Texas) that serves members of groups (i.e., Asian Pacific American, Black American, Hispanic American, Native American, Woman, Service Disabled Veteran) 
identified in Texas Administrative Code §20.282(19)(C). 

We respectfully request that vendors interested in bidding on the subcontracting opportunity scope of work identified in Section C, Item 2, reply no later than the date and time 
identified in Section C, Item 1. Submit your response to the point-of-contact referenced in Section A. 

SECTION A: PRIME CONTRACTOR’S INFORMATION

Company Name:

. 
Central Time Date (mm/dd/yyyy) 

Point-of-Contact:
E-mail Address:

State of Texas VID #:

SECTION B: CONTRACTING STATE AGENCY AND REQUISITION INFORMATION

Agency Name: 
Point-of-Contact: Phone #: 

Requisition #: Bid Open Date: 
(mm/dd/yyyy) 

SECTION C: SUBCONTRACTING OPPORTUNITY RESPONSE DUE DATE, DESCRIPTION, REQUIREMENTS AND RELATED INFORMATION

1. Potential Subcontractor’s Bid Response Due Date:
 If you would like for our company to consider your company’s bid for the subcontracting opportunity identified below in Item 2, 

we must receive your bid response no later than

In accordance with 34 TAC §20.285, each notice of subcontracting opportunity shall be provided to at least three (3) Texas certified HUBs, and allow the HUBs at 
least seven (7) working days to respond to the notice prior to submitting our bid response to the contracting agency. In addition, at least seven (7) working days prior 
to us submitting our bid response to the contracting agency, we must provide notice of each of our subcontracting opportunities to two (2) or more trade 
organizations or development centers (in Texas) that serves members of groups (i.e., Asian Pacific American, Black American, Hispanic American, Native 
American, Woman, Service Disabled Veteran) identified in Texas Administrative Code, §20.282(19)(C).

(A working day is considered a normal business day of a state agency, not including weekends, federal or state holidays, or days the agency is declared closed 
by its executive officer. The initial day the subcontracting opportunity notice is sent/provided to the HUBs and to the trade organizations or development centers 
is considered to be “day zero” and does not count as one of the seven (7) working days.) 

2. Subcontracting Opportunity Scope of Work:

3. Required Qualifications:  - Not Applicable 

4. Bonding/Insurance Requirements:  - Not Applicable

5. Location  to review plans/specifications: - Not Applicable 

on

Phone #: 
Fax #:
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EASY HUB LOOKUP on the CMBL 
 
In accordance with Texas Administrative Code 20.14, the following HUB lookup procedures 
have been developed utilizing the Comptroller of Public Accounts website to identify possible 
HUB Vendors for subcontracting opportunities. 
 
To that end the following easy step by step instructions to identify NIGP codes and search for 
potential HUB subcontractors is provided by Stephen F. Austin State University. In addition, the 
University may have already completed searches that may be beneficial and include a list of 
potential HUB subcontractors that may be used by the Respondent. If you have a hard time 
reading the webpages cited, increase the page view to 200% or better. 
 
For assistance with this instruction or further assistance in identifying potential HUB 
subcontractors, please contact Kay Johnson at 936-468-6550. 
 
STEP 1: After identifying what areas that are going to be subcontracted for the project go to 
the following web address at Comptroller of Public Accounts: 
 
https://mycpa.cpa.state.tx.us/commbook/indexSearch  
 

 
 
 

https://mycpa.cpa.state.tx.us/commbook/indexSearch
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At this point type in the item you are looking for in Search keywords: (for this example we are 
looking for drywall services). Press Submit Search and the results will appear. See example 
below: 
 

 
 
The page will list Keyword Match for drywall. In this example the Class-Item for Drywall 
Services, Ceiling and Wall is 910-75. Remember to write down the Class and Item numbers. You 
will do the same for other items that you will be subcontracting on the project. Once you have 
completed collecting all Class and Item numbers for sub-contracting opportunities you can 
precede to Step 2 
 
STEP 2: With the Class and Item numbers you can search for HUB Vendors on the 
Centralized Master Bidders List – HUB Directory Search. Go to the following web address at 
Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts: 
 
https://mycpa.cpa.state.tx.us/tpasscmblsearch/index.jsp     
 
Under SEARCH FOR mark HUBs Only  (you are looking for HUB vendors) 
 
The EXAMPLE below is how the form should be filled out. Search for HUBs on CMBL; 
Selection 1: Class-Item; Select Fields For Output (Vendor ID, Company Name, Contact Person, 
City, Email, Phone, Business Description, HUB Eligibility, HUB Gender)      
 
In the example below we are searching for NIGP Class Code 910, Items 75 (Drywall Services).  
 

https://mycpa.cpa.state.tx.us/tpasscmblsearch/index.jsp
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Once all the information needed has been marked. Click : SEARCH. 
 

 
 
 
Once the search is completed, a page like the one below will appear listing all the HUB 
companies that are Class 910 and Item 75. 
 
The search found 222 vendors where are HUB’s. 
 
At this point you should look at the Business Description to confirm that the company does 
indeed provide drywall services. Note that the first company listed 1DZ ENTERPRISE, L.L.C. 
does not list drywall services, instead the company business description list Janitorial Service – if 
at all possible you should not use this company in your Good Faith Efforts as there are other 
companies that list dry wall in their business description.  
 
3 B’S CONTSTRUCTION does list drywall and is a good candidate for sending a request to bid 
the project. 
 
YOU ARE REQUIRED TO SELECT THREE (3) HUB VENDORS TO CONTACT. 
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When looking for HUB Vendors to support you at SFA look for these vendors that are close to 
Nacogdoches and East Texas. If none can be found in our area, expand your search to the 
Dallas/Fort Worth area, Austin and Houston market areas.  
 
NOTES: 
 
1) SELECTING HUBS THAT ARE FROM EL PASO, AND FAR WEST TEXAS DOES NOT 
SHOW GOOD FAITH IN YOUR SELECTION PROCESS. 
 
2) IF YOU DO NOT UNDERSTAND THESE DIRECTIONS OR NEED ASSITANCE 
PLEASE CONTACT THE SFA PROCUREMENT OFFICE FOR HELP. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



POTENTIAL HUB SUBCONTRACTORS PROVIDED WITH 
Request for Proposal: #SOUND RECORDING TECH STUDIO 23 
Issued by Stephen F. Austin State University 
Closing Date/Time:  October 21, 2022 5:00pm 
 
This list of potential HUB subcontractors is provided for information only and SFA does not endorse, recommend, nor 
attest to the capabilities of any company or individual listed.  A complete list of State certified HUBs can be searched on-
line at https://mycpa.cpa.state.tx.us/tpasscmblsearch/index.jsp  
 
The Respondent is responsible for compliance with the Good Faith Effort requirements outlined in the Request For 
Proposal and HUB Subcontracting Plan documents. 
 
NIGP Class Code – vendors in the following commodity class codes are identified on the 
following pages.  The vendor is responsible to identify all commodity classes that may 
represent subcontracting opportunities. 
 
803 - 18 Electronic Sound Equipment (Not Otherwise Classified) 

840 - 50 Studio Equipment: Furnishings, Record and Tape Storage Cabinets, Tables, etc. 

855 - 70 Sound Effects Equipment 

939 - 77 Sound Equipment, Including Microphones, Speakers, Recording Equipment, etc., Installation, 
Maintenance and Repair 

https://mycpa.cpa.state.tx.us/tpasscmblsearch/index.jsp


 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT G 
SFASU STANDARD CONTRACT 

                ADDENDUM 
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STANDARD CONTRACT ADDENDUM 
 

This Standard Contract Addendum (“Addendum”) is between Stephen F. Austin State University (“University”) and the party 
represented in the signature block below (“Contracting Party”) and is incorporated by reference into the attached Agreement 
and all addendums, attachments, and exhibits thereto, numbered iContracts ######, between University and Contracting 
Party (the “Agreement”). Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, if there is any conflict or contradiction 
between the provisions of the Agreement and those in this Addendum, this Addendum will control and supersede all 
conflicting provisions, and Contracting Party waives any claim to the contrary. 
 
1. Payment Terms. Payment terms for amounts due from University to Contracting Party under this Agreement (including 

but not limited to due dates, late fees, and interest) are governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code. 
University is not responsible for the payment of collection costs or attorney’s fees unless explicitly required by law.  

2. Representations and Warranties by Contracting Party. If Contracting Party is a corporation, limited liability company, or 
any other entity organized and existing under state law, Contracting Party warrants, represents, covenants, and agrees 
that it is duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the state of its incorporation or 
organization and is duly authorized and in good standing to conduct business in the State of Texas, that it has all 
necessary power and has received all necessary approvals to execute and deliver this Agreement, and the individual 
executing this Agreement on behalf of Contracting Party has been duly authorized to act for and bind Contracting Party. 

3. Tax Certification. If Contracting Party is a taxable entity as defined by Chapter 171, Texas Tax Code (“Chapter 171”), 
then Contracting Party certifies that it is not currently delinquent in the payment of any taxes due under Chapter 171, or 
that Contracting Party is exempt from the payment of those taxes, or that Contracting Party is an out-of-state taxable 
entity that is not subject to those taxes, whichever is applicable. 

4. Eligibility to Receive Payment. In accordance with Section 231.006 of the Texas Family Code and Sections 2155.004 
and 2155.006 of the Texas Government Code, Contracting Party certifies that it is not ineligible to receive this 
Agreement or any payments under this Agreement and acknowledges that University may terminate this Agreement 
and/or withhold payment and/or reimbursement if this certification is inaccurate.  

5. Payment of Debt or Delinquency to the State. Pursuant to Sections 2107.008 and 2252.903, Texas Government Code, 
Contracting Party agrees that any payments owing to Contracting Party under this Agreement may be applied directly 
toward any debt or delinquency that Contracting Party owes the State of Texas or any agency of the State of Texas 
regardless of when it arises, until such debt or delinquency is paid in full.  

6. Conflict of Interest. Contracting Party and each person signing on behalf of Contracting Party certifies, and in the case 
of a sole proprietorship, partnership or corporation, each party thereto certifies as to its own organization, under penalty 
of perjury, that to the best of their knowledge and belief, no member of University’s Board of Regents, nor any employee 
or person, whose salary is payable in whole or in part by University, has direct or indirect financial interest in the award 
of this Agreement, or in the services to which this Agreement relates, or in any of the profits, real or potential, thereof. 

7. Products and Materials Produced in Texas. If Contracting Party will provide services under this Agreement, Contracting 
Party covenants and agrees that in accordance with Section 2155.4441, Texas Government Code, in performing its 
duties and obligations under this Agreement, Contracting Party will purchase products and materials produced in Texas 
when such products and materials are available at a price and delivery time comparable to products and materials 
produced outside of Texas.  

8. Tax Exemption.  University is exempt from the payment of taxes and will provide necessary documentation confirming 
its tax-exempt status. 

9. Travel Expenses. If this Agreement requires University to reimburse Contracting Party for travel expenses, Contracting 
Party shall invoice all requests for reimbursement in accordance with the State of Texas travel, meal and lodging 
reimbursement guidelines and limitations applicable to State of Texas employees.   

10. Delivery, Title, and Risk of Loss. All work performed by Contracting Party pursuant to this Agreement will be at 
Contracting Party’s exclusive risk until final and complete acceptance of the work by University. In the case of any loss 
or damage to the goods or work prior to University’s acceptance, such loss or damage will be Contracting Party’s 
responsibility. Unless otherwise agreed to in writing, Contracting Party shall arrange and pay for all shipping charges, 
transit insurance, taxes, and custom charges and any fees and duties in connection with shipment of goods. Delivery 
of any goods to University pursuant to this Agreement must be FOB destination. Contracting Party shall hold title to and 
risk of loss of goods under this Agreement, including during tender to carrier until final delivery to University, at which 
time title and risk of loss and damage to goods shall transfer to University. 

11. Insurance. University is insured for general liability insurance under a statewide program managed by the Texas State 
Office of Risk Management. Such insurance will satisfy any University insurance obligations in this Agreement, 
regardless of the type of coverage required. For the entire term of this Agreement (“Term”), Contracting Party shall 
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maintain Comprehensive General Liability insurance coverage of $1,000,000 per occurrence. If, during the Term, 
Contracting Party will enter property owned or controlled by the University, Contracting Party shall also maintain the 
following insurance: (i) Worker’s Compensation coverage with statutory limits for the State of Texas, including 
Employers Liability coverage of $1,000,000 per accident and per employee; and (ii) Commercial Automobile Liability 
coverage of $1,000,000 Combined Single Limit; (iii) for engineers and architects only: Professional Liability coverage of 
$5,000,000 per occurrence; and (iv) for builders only: Builder’s Risk all-risk coverage ending at final completion in the 
amount of the construction cost, including protection against named windstorm and flood. Risk of loss of any portion of 
the Project shall remain with Contracting Party unless and until such portion of the Project passes into the exclusive 
possession and control of University. All policies must contain a waiver of subrogation against University. 
Comprehensive General Liability and Commercial Automobile Liability policies must name University as Additional 
Insured and must include an endorsement to the policy that expressly extends coverage to University as an Additional 
Insured. All policies required to be maintained by Contracting Party under this Agreement shall be primary and 
noncontributory to any other insurance, self-insurance, or risk pooling arrangement maintained by University. 
Contracting Party shall pay all insurance deductibles and deductibles must not exceed $10,000 unless approved in 
advance by University. Contracting Party shall provide University Certificates of Insurance evidencing these insurance 
requirements prior to the start of work. Insurance policies will not be cancelled or altered until after sixty (60) days’ 
unconditional written notice to University. In accordance with Texas state law, University shall not name any individual 
or entity as Additional Insured on a University insurance policy. 

12. Indemnification. CONTRACTING PARTY SHALL INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS UNIVERSITY AND ITS DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, 
AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES FROM AND AGAINST ALL LIABILITY, LOSS, EXPENSES (INCLUDING REASONABLE LITIGATION COSTS AND 
ATTORNEY FEES), OR CLAIMS FOR INJURY OR DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF THE PERFORMANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT 
(COLLECTIVELY, “CLAIM”) TO THE EXTENT THE CLAIM ARISES FROM THE NEGLIGENCE, WILLFUL ACT, BREACH OF CONTRACT, OR 
VIOLATION OF LAW BY CONTRACTING PARTY, ITS EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, CONTRACTORS, OR SUBCONTRACTORS.  

13. Subcontracts. If Contracting Party subcontracts any of the work set forth in this Agreement, Contracting Party shall 
ensure that each subcontractor, vendor, affiliate, agent or representative agrees to and complies with all provisions of 
this Agreement and this Addendum. Contracting Party will remain liable for the acts and omissions of such 
subcontractor(s) and the proper performance and delivery of the products and/or services set forth in this Agreement.  

14. Assignment. Contracting Party shall not assign any of its rights under this Agreement, either voluntarily or involuntarily, 
whether by merger, consolidation, dissolution, operation of law, or any other manner, except with the prior written 
consent of University. Contracting Party shall not delegate any performance under this Agreement, except with the prior 
written consent of University. Any purported assignment of rights or delegation of performance in violation of this 
provision is null and void. 

15. Access by Individuals with Disabilities. To the extent Contracting Party is providing Electronic Information Resources, 
as described herein, to University, Contracting Party represents and warrants that the electronic and information 
resources, as defined by Texas law, and all associated information, documentation and support that it provides to 
University under this Agreement (“Electronic and information Resources (EIR) Accessibility Warranty”; collectively, the 
“EIRs”) comply with the applicable requirements set forth in Title 1, Chapters 206 and 213 of the Texas Administrative 
Code. University may review, test, evaluate and monitor Contracting Party’s EIRs for compliance with the EIR 
Accessibility Warranty. Contracting Party agrees to cooperate fully and provide University timely access to EIRs and 
other items and information needed to conduct such review, evaluation, testing and monitoring. Neither the review, 
testing (including acceptance testing), evaluation, or monitoring of any EIR, nor the absence of such review, testing, 
evaluation, or monitoring will result in a waiver of the University’s right to contest the Contracting Party’s assertion of 
compliance with the EIR Accessibility Warranty. To the extent Contracting Party becomes aware that the EIRs, or any 
portion thereof, do not comply with the EIR Accessibility Warranty, then Contracting Party represents and warrants that 
it will, at no cost to University, either (1) perform all necessary remediation to make the EIRs satisfy the EIR Accessibility 
Warranty or (2) replace the EIRs with new EIRs that satisfy the EIR Accessibility Warranty.  In the event Contracting 
Party fails or is unable to do so, then University may terminate this Agreement and Contracting Party will refund to 
University all amounts University has paid under this Agreement during the time Contracting Party was out of 
compliance with the EIR Accessibility Warranty within thirty (30) days after the termination date. 

16. Other Agreements. This Agreement and Addendum is the entire agreement between University (including University's 
employees) and Contracting Party.  Contracting Party may enter into terms of use agreements, end user license 
agreements ("EULA"), shrink-wrap provisions, or other agreements or understandings with users of a site or software 
who are not University's employees.  University shall not be liable for the actions of the users of any application, site or 
services, other than University's employees and to the extent permitted herein.  In the event that Contracting Party 
enters into terms of use agreements, terms of services agreements, EULA, shrink-wrap, click-through or other 
agreements or understandings, whether verbal or in writing, with University's employees, such as by requiring the 
employee to click an on screen indicator indicating "I accept" before allowing the user to access the application, site or 
service, such agreements shall be null, void and without effect, and the terms of this Agreement and this Addendum 
shall apply. Contracting Party acknowledges and agrees that no University employee other than its President has the 
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authority to bind University in contract.  University will not be bound to any other terms and conditions set forth in any 
documents, agreements or policies posted on Contracting Party's website unless such terms and conditions are set 
forth in this Agreement.  Contracting Party may not unilaterally change any term or condition of this Agreement.  

17. Termination for Convenience. University may terminate this Agreement in writing at any time upon providing at least 
thirty (30) days written notice to Contracting Party. University will only be liable for payment for Services received prior 
to the effective date of such termination. 

18. Loss of Funding. Performance by University under this Agreement may be dependent upon the appropriation and 
allotment of funds by the Texas State Legislature (the "Legislature") and/or allocation of funds by the Board of Regents 
of University (the "Board"). If the Legislature fails to appropriate or allot the necessary funds, or the Board fails to allocate 
the necessary funds, then University will issue written notice to Contracting Party and University may terminate this 
Agreement without further duty or obligation hereunder. Contracting Party acknowledges that appropriation, allotment, 
and allocation of funds are beyond the control of University. 

19. State Auditor’s Office. Contracting Party understands that acceptance of funds under this Agreement constitutes 
acceptance of the authority of the Texas State Auditor's Office, or any successor agency (collectively, “Auditor”), to 
conduct an audit or investigation in connection with those funds pursuant to Sections 51.9335(c), Texas Education 
Code. Contracting Party agrees to cooperate with the Auditor in the conduct of the audit or investigation, including 
without limitation providing all records requested. Contracting Party will include this provision in all contracts with 
permitted subcontractors. 

20. Limitations. THE PARTIES ARE AWARE THAT THERE ARE CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY LIMITATIONS ON THE AUTHORITY OF 
UNIVERSITY (A STATE AGENCY) TO ENTER INTO CERTAIN TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT, INCLUDING, BUT NOT 
LIMITED TO, THOSE TERMS AND CONDITIONS RELATING TO LIENS ON UNIVERSITY’S PROPERTY; DISCLAIMERS AND LIMITATIONS OF 
WARRANTIES; DISCLAIMERS AND LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY FOR DAMAGES; WAIVERS, DISCLAIMERS AND LIMITATIONS OF LEGAL 
RIGHTS, REMEDIES, REQUIREMENTS AND PROCESSES; LIMITATIONS OF PERIODS TO BRING LEGAL ACTION; GRANTING CONTROL 
OF LITIGATION OR SETTLEMENT TO ANOTHER PARTY; LIABILITY FOR ACTS OR OMISSIONS OF THIRD PARTIES; PAYMENT OF 
ATTORNEYS’ FEES; DISPUTE RESOLUTION; INDEMNITIES; AND CONFIDENTIALITY (COLLECTIVELY, THE “LIMITATIONS”), AND TERMS 
AND CONDITIONS RELATED TO THE LIMITATIONS WILL NOT BE BINDING ON UNIVERSITY EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT AUTHORIZED BY 
THE LAWS AND CONSTITUTION OF THE STATE OF TEXAS. 

21. Sovereign Immunity. The Parties stipulate and agree that no provision of, or any part of this Agreement between 
University and Contracting Party, or any subsequent change order, amendment, or other Agreement modification shall 
be construed: (1) as a waiver of the doctrine of sovereign immunity or immunity from suit as provided for in the Texas 
Constitution and the Laws of the State of Texas; (2) to extend liability to University beyond such liability provided for in 
the Texas Constitution and the Laws of the State of Texas; or (3) as a waiver of any immunity provided by the 11th 
Amendment or any other provision of the United States Constitution or any immunity recognized by the Courts and the 
laws of the United States. 

22. Access to Public Information. Contracting Party is required to make any information created or exchanged with 
University pursuant to this Agreement, and not otherwise excepted from disclosure under the Texas Public Information 
Act, available in PDF or other format that is accessible by the public at no additional charge to University. Contracting 
Party acknowledges that University may be required to post a copy of the fully executed Agreement on its internet 
website in compliance with Section 2261.253(a)(1), Texas Government Code.  

23. Confidentiality. During the course of the work and/or services to be provided under this Agreement and for a period of 
five (5) years thereafter, Contracting Party may come in contact with confidential information of University. Contracting 
Party agrees to treat as confidential the information or knowledge that becomes known to Contracting Party during 
performance of this Agreement and not to use, copy, or disclose such information to any third party unless authorized 
in writing by University. This provision does not restrict the disclosure of any information that is required to be disclosed 
under applicable law. Contracting Party shall promptly notify University of any misuse or unauthorized disclosure of its 
confidential information and upon expiration of this Agreement shall return to University all confidential information in 
Contracting Party’s possession or control. Contracting Party shall further comply with all University information security 
policies that may apply. 

24. Title IX. University strictly adheres to Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, the federal Campus Sexual 
Violence Elimination Act; United States Department of Education regulations and directives; and the University’s sexual 
harassment policy and procedures (“Regulations”).  Specifically, the Regulations apply to all students, employees, 
visitors, and other third parties on University-controlled property, including institutions and entities with whom University 
places its students.  Further, such Regulations prohibit unequal treatment on the basis of sex as well as sexual 
harassment and sexual misconduct. As a condition of employment, enrollment, doing business, or being permitted on 
the campus, the above-mentioned individuals, organizations, and entities must agree to:  1) Report immediately to the 
Title IX coordinator any and all claims of sex discrimination or sexual misconduct; 2) Cooperate with University’s Title 
IX investigation; and, 3) Cooperate fully with all sanctions that University may impose against such individual, 
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organization, or entity, who is found to have violated the Regulations.  If the individual, organization, or entity fails to 
adhere to any of the aforementioned requirements, University reserves the right to take appropriate action, including 
but not necessarily limited to, immediate removal from campus; discipline of employees and students (including 
termination of employment and/or expulsion from school); and immediate termination of business or contractual 
relationships. 

25. Publicity. Contracting Party shall not use the University’s name, logo, service mark, or other likeness in any press 
release, marketing materials, or other public announcement without receiving University’s prior written approval.  

26. Compliance. Contracting Party shall observe and abide by all applicable local, state, and federal laws, regulations, and 
University policies and procedures. 

27. U.S. Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify System. By entering into this Agreement, Contracting Party certifies 
and ensures that it utilizes and will continue to utilize, for the term of this Agreement, the U.S. Department of Homeland 
Security’s E-Verify system to determine the eligibility of: (i) all persons employed to perform duties within Texas, during 
the term of this Agreement; and (ii) all persons (including subcontractors) assigned by Contracting Party to perform 
work pursuant to this Agreement, within the United States of America. Contracting Party shall provide, upon request of 
University, an electronic or hardcopy screenshot of the confirmation or tentative non-confirmation screen containing the 
E-Verify case verification number for attachment to the Form I-9 for the three most recent hires that match the criteria 
above, by Contracting Party, and Contracting Party’s subcontractors, as proof that this provision is being followed. If 
this certification is falsely made, this Agreement may be terminated, at the discretion of the University and at no fault to 
the University, with no prior notification. Contracting Party shall also be responsible for the costs of any re-solicitation 
that the University must undertake to replace the terminated Agreement. 

28. Israel Non-Boycott Verification. If this Agreement has a value of $100,000 or more that is to be paid wholly or partly 
from public funds of University, and if Contracting Party is a company, other than a sole proprietorship, with ten (10) or 
more full-time employees, then pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 2271, Contracting Party affirmatively 
states that is does not boycott Israel and will not boycott Israel during the term of this Agreement, as that term is defined 
by Section 808.001 (1), Texas Government Code. 

29. Dispute Resolution; Governing Law. This Agreement and the applicable statute of limitations for any disputes under this 
Agreement shall be brought in a court of competent jurisdiction in Nacogdoches or Angelina County, Texas and 
governed by Texas law.  To the extent that Chapter 2260, Texas Government Code, is applicable to this Agreement 
and is not preempted by other applicable law, the dispute resolution process provided for in Chapter 2260 and the 
related rules adopted by the Texas Attorney General pursuant to Chapter 2260, shall be used by University and 
Contracting Party to attempt to resolve any claim for breach of contract made by Contracting Party that cannot be 
resolved in the ordinary course of business. The Vice President for Finance & Administration of University shall examine 
Contracting Party’s claim and any counterclaim and negotiate with Contracting Party in an effort to resolve such claims. 
The parties hereto specifically agree that (i) neither the occurrence of an event giving rise to a breach of contract claim 
nor the pendency of a claim constitute grounds for the suspension of performance by Contracting Party, (ii) neither the 
issuance of this Agreement by University nor any other conduct, action or inaction of any representative of University 
relating to this contract constitutes or is intended to constitute a waiver of University’s or the state’s sovereign immunity 
to suit; and (iii) University has not waived its right to seek redress in the courts.   

30. FERPA Compliance. To the extent applicable, Contracting Party agrees to hold student information, including any 
personally identifiable student information or education records as those terms are defined under federal law, 
(“Confidential Data”) in strict confidence and warrants to University that it will use reasonable industry practices to 
establish and maintain adequate procedures to ensure the confidentiality and privacy of such Confidential Data from 
unauthorized use or disclosure in violation of the Federal Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (“The Buckley 
Amendment or “FERPA”), 20 USC 1232 g and not to use or disclose Confidential Data except as permitted or required 
by this Agreement, as required by law, or as otherwise authorized by University in writing. Contracting Party further agrees 
not to use Confidential Data for any purpose other than the purpose for which the disclosure to Contracting Party was 
made. Contracting Party shall continue to maintain the confidentiality and privacy of the Confidential Data retained in 
its system after cancellation, expiration or other conclusion of this Agreement. Upon termination, cancellation, expiration 
or other conclusion of this Agreement, Contractor shall return all Confidential Data to University or, if return is not 
feasible, destroy any and all Confidential Data.  If Contracting Party destroys the information, it shall provide University 
with a certificate confirming the date of destruction of the data.  Contracting Party shall develop, implement, maintain 
and use appropriate administrative, technical and physical security measures to preserve the confidentiality, integrity 
and availability of all electronically maintained or transmitted Confidential Data received from, or on behalf of University 
or its students.  These measures will be extended by contract to all subcontractors used by Contracting 
Party.  Contracting Party shall, within one day of discovery, report to University any use or disclosure of confidential 
information not authorized by this agreement or in writing by University.  Following this report, Contracting Party will 
conduct a timely and thorough investigation in an attempt to identify:  (i) the nature of the unauthorized use or disclosure, 
(ii) the data used or disclosed, and (iii) who made the unauthorized use or received the unauthorized disclosure.  At the 
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conclusion of this investigation, Contracting Party will furnish a confidential written report to University indicating the 
results of the investigation, what Contracting Party has done or shall do to mitigate any deleterious effect of the 
unauthorized use or disclosure, and what corrective action Contracting Party has taken or shall take to prevent future 
similar unauthorized use or disclosure. 
 

31. Contracts with Foreign Terrorist Organizations Prohibited. Pursuant to Section 2252.152, Texas Government Code, 
and to the extent applicable, Contracting Party hereby represents, verifies, and warrants that it does not do business 
with Iran, Sudan, or any foreign terrorist organization identified on a list prepared and maintained under Section 806.051, 
807.051, or 2252.153, Texas Government Code. 
 

32. Trafficking of Persons. Under Section 2155.0061, Texas Government Code, Contracting Party certifies that the 
individual or business entity named in the bid or Agreement is not ineligible to receive the specified Agreement and 
acknowledges that this Agreement may be terminated and payment withheld if this certification is inaccurate.  

 
33. Cybersecurity Training Certification. In accordance with Section 2054.5192, Texas Government Code, if Contracting 

Party, or a subcontractor, officer, or employee of Contracting Party, will have access to a state computer system or 
database, then Contracting Party shall ensure that such officer, employee, or subcontractor shall complete a 
cybersecurity training program certified under Section 2054.519, Texas Government Code, as selected by University. 
The cybersecurity training program must be completed by such officer, employee, or subcontractor during the term of 
the contract and during any renewal period. Contracting Party shall verify to the University completion of the program 
by each such officer, employee, or subcontractor. 

34. Force Majeure. Neither party hereto will be liable or responsible to the other for any loss or damage or for any delays 
or failure to perform arising out of or caused, directly or indirectly, by circumstances beyond its reasonable control 
including acts of God, strikes, national, state or local health emergency, war, riots, flood, fire, sabotage, governmental 
authority, or any other circumstances (“Force Majeure Occurrence”). Provided, however, in the event of a Force Majeure 
Occurrence, Contracting Party agrees to use their best efforts to mitigate the impact of the occurrence so that University 
may continue to provide mission critical services during the Force Majeure Occurrence. 

35. Buy American Iron and Steel. For orders in which iron or steel products will be used, Contracting Party agrees to comply 
with Section 2252.202, Texas Government Code, requiring any iron or steel products produced through manufacturing 
process and used in the projects be produced in the United States, unless otherwise exempt under Section 2252.203, 
Texas Government Code. 

 
36. Energy Company Boycotts. Pursuant to Chapter 2274 of the Texas Government Code, to the extent applicable, 

Contracting Party certifies that it: 
1) does not boycott energy companies as defined in Section 809.001(1)(A) Texas Government Code (i.e., 
fossil fuel companies); and 
2) will not boycott energy companies during the term of the agreement. 
 

37. Critical Infrastructure Affirmation. Pursuant to Section 2274.0102 of the Texas Government Code, Contracting Party 
certifies that neither it nor its parent company, nor any affiliate of Contracting Party or its parent company, is either 
majority owned or controlled by citizens or governmental entities of China, Iran, North Korea, Russia, or any other 
country designated by the Governor under Section 2274.0103 of Texas Government Code, or headquartered in any of 
those countries. 

 
38. Firearm Entities and Trade Associations Discrimination. Pursuant to Chapter 2274 of the Texas Government Code, for 

agreements that exceed $100,000, Contracting Party certifies that it: 
1) does not have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm 
trade association; and 
2) will not discriminate during the term of the agreement against a firearm entity or firearm trade association. 
 

39. Contractor Compliance and Certification Relating to Cloud Computing Services. Pursuant to Section 2054.0593 of the 
Texas Government Code, if Contracting Party provides cloud computing services under the Agreement and is 
authorized to access, transmit, use, or store data for University, Contracting Party is required to meet security controls 
established by the Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR) and determined by University, which are 
commensurate with University’s risk under the Agreement based on the sensitivity of University’s data. Upon reasonable 
request, Contracting Party will provide to University evidence that Contracting Party meets the security controls required 
under the Agreement. Contracting Party acknowledges this Agreement may be terminated and payment withheld if 
Contracting Party does not comply with this Section.  

 
40. Contractor Certification Regarding COVID-19 Vaccination. Pursuant to Section 61.0085, Texas Health and Safety Code 
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(enacted by SB 968, 87th Texas Legislature, Regular Session (2021)). Contractor certifies that it does not require a 
customer to provide any documentation certifying the customer’s COVID-19 vaccination or post-transmission recovery 
on entry to, to gain access to, or to receive service from Contractor’s business. Contractor acknowledges this Agreement 
may be terminated and payment withheld if this certification is inaccurate.  

 
41. Debarment and Suspension. Pursuant to Executive Order 12549 and Executive Order 12689, the University may not 

contract with parties listed with an active exclusion on the General Services Administration’s System for Award 
Management (SAM). SAM identifies (via active exclusions) entities that have been debarred, suspended, or excluded 
from receiving federal contracts, subcontracts, or federal assistance and benefits.  In compliance with the Code of 
Federal Regulations (CFR) Section 180.300, the University includes suspension/debarment provisions in its purchase 
orders.  By accepting the University’s purchase order, the Contracting Party is certifying that, to the best of its 
knowledge, the Contracting Party/or any of its principals are not suspended or debarred. Contractor certifies that it is 
not subject to a vendor hold by the State of Texas. Contractor certifies that it is not subject to debarment or suspension 
by the Texas Comptroller.  

 
 
 

UNIVERSITY      CONTRACTING PARTY 
 
Stephen F. Austin State University         
       Party Name 
 
             
Signature      Signature 
             
Name       Name 
             
Title       Title 
             
Date       Date 
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